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notice of meeting

Committee Members/Notice of Meeting  
Notice is hereby given that the 100th Annual General Meeting
of the Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Inc. will be held at the Clubhouse, 
Dee Why Beach on Sunday 28th of July 2013 at 11:00am

CLUB AWARDS 
Alf Lofton Junior Club Person of the Year 
Jack-Henry Bryant 

Jock Ewing Club Person of the Year  
Matt Molinia 

Nelson Chad Trophy for Most Consistent Competitor 
Emma Jeffcoat

Patron 	 The Hon. Sir William Deane, AC,KBE 

Executive 
President	 Simon Moriarty
Deputy President	 Marty Quinn 
Secretary	 Liam French
Treasurer	 David Lang
Club Captain	 Denise Gammie
Junior Development Officer	 Matt Molinia
 

Management Committee 
Chief Instructor	 Vaughn Williams
Assistant Chief Instructor	 Caroline Guernier
Registrar	 Sue Cheney
Club Vice Captain	 Pete Firminger
Club Vice Captain	 Steve Richards
Club Vice Captain	 No election
1st Nipper Representative	 Roger Jacobs
2nd Nipper Representative	 Warren Hannam
Competition Manager	 Phil Thomas
Boat Captain	 Steve Scott
IRB Captain	 Allan Skinner
Cadet Co-ordinator	 No election
Sponsorship Co-ordinator	 No election
First Aid Officer	 Samantha Skinner
Social Co-ordinator	 Gary Yabsley
Public Relations Officer	 No election
Building Manager	 Grant Marshall
Board & Ski Captain	 Peter Hatfield
Male Youth Representative	 Jack-Henry Bryant
Female Youth Representative	 No election
 

Non Committee Positions 
Head Coach	 Marty Quinn
Gear Steward	 No election
Hon. Legal Officer	 Allen Lakeman
Radio Officer	 Ross Gammidge
Licensee	 Peter Greenow
 

Auditor 
Peter Power of W&D Financial Services      

Life Membership Committee 
President (ex officio)		 Simon Moriarty	
Deputy President		  Martin Quinn

(Three members not on Management Committee)
Matt Phelan, Stephen Moran

. . .

Life Members at the 100 year Dinner.
Left to Right, Rear: Tom Hand, Doug Andrew, Jeff Andrew, David Lang,
Marty Quinn, Steve Haggett, John Ewing, Bill Gee, Bruce Richardson; 

Front: Steve Moran, Barrie Pitt, Ray Martin, Tony  Ingram, John Arday, Richie Burke, Ivor Rees.
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administration reports

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
by Simon Moriarty

Welcome to the 100th Annual Report of the Dee Why Surf Life 
Saving Club.

I am certain that while our founding club members imagined the 
club would be active for many years I wonder if they ever thought 
that we would achieve the milestone of 100 years of vigilance and 
service; but we have and for the estimated 7,000 members who 
have contributed to the history and success of the club thank you for 
making the celebrating of this historic achievement a reality.

We have certainly had a very successful centenary season in both 
club achievements and celebrations of which many are highlighted 
throughout this report. In my report I intend to highlight the major 
events that the Club was involved with this season.

We started the season with a new Chief Instructor in Vaughn 
Williams who introduced some innovative training programs and 
training timetables including running two successful six week Bronze 
Medallion courses. Unfortunately the second course was plagued 
by closed beaches for several weekends making it difficult to gain 
experience in the ocean as well as central venue examinations 
being postponed. The six week courses were welcomed by those 
that undertook them including Chelsea Haggett the daughter of Life 
Member Steve and provided the trainers with a little more downtime 
during the season. At the time of writing the Most Outstanding Club 
point score is being reviewed however it is pleasing to note that 
this year we have achieved the maximum points for when a club 
increases its overall number of awards (all disciplines) from the 
previous season a first for several years however Vaughn’s biggest 
challenge during the year was becoming an Australian Citizen and 
for the first time many of us could finally understand his accent. We 
also had several new trainers and assessors endorsed during the 
year (details elsewhere in this report) and I thank them for their 
commitment to club members by undertaking additional roles.

During the season we ran a very successful Senior First Aid course 
facilitated by previous club member Stuart Massey and his assistant 
paramedic. The day was such a success that many club members 
who attended believed that all patrolling club members should be 
given the opportunity to undertake the course. Having listened to 
their request I am currently sourcing grants to be able to provide 
the funds.  

While we had a successful season in the education department 
my perennial argument is of course the extraordinary duplication 
of reporting and in general the amount of paperwork required to 
complete an award. In my view this has seen our Bronze Medallion, 
now a Certificate II in Aquatic Safety, becoming a workplace award 
which serves no real purpose to the average club member however 
the organisation VETAB audits the awards which only serve 
the higher association bodies the opportunity to earn money by 
providing courses to industry as a Registered Training Organisation. 
I have served on a Branch Strategic Review committee this year and 
this area of the Branch operations has been reviewed as to its role. 

It is again very pleasing to note another season of no lives lost while 
the patrols has been on duty. Once again very big crowds visited 
Dee Why beach and compared to last season we had many hot days 
and particularly warm water, even in May it was still 23 degrees, so 
it is a pleasing result. Once again Denise Gammie and her Vice 
Captains made certain that the start of the season went well with 
a clean bill of health at Gear Inspection along with the help of Pete 
Hatfield, Marty Quinn, Matt Molinia, Allan Skinner Grant Marshall 
Steven Polley, Adam Hockley, Ross Gammage, Sam Skinner and I 
am sure there are others so a big thank you for your efforts.

It goes without saying, but needs to be recorded, our patrolling 
members, many of who also compete for the club, have done an 

outstanding job on the beach with some very difficult conditions with 
which to deal with this summer, particularly the weed which seemed 
to hang around for many weeks causing a nightmare for IRB’s to 
properly execute any rescues and making it difficult to set the flags 
in a clean area.

Once again the Council Lifeguards proved to be a valuable resource 
and worked well with the volunteer lifesavers, so to Clinton Rose, 
Steve Dowman and Tim Donkin the Beach Services leaders and to 
Senior Lifeguards Scott Mortimer and Heath Brown and the regular 
Lifeguards Madison Quinn, Neil Dannenberg, Josh Wall, Adam 
Murray, Dean White, Jason Gard, Danny Sheather, Parker Graham, 
Cameron Bealy, Harrison Selby and Brad Meaney and we even had 
visits from Hayden Quinn and Dan Payne when their expertise was 
required, thank you for the courtesies shown to me and the club 
members. 

On Friday the 21st September 2012 the first of our Centenary 
Celebration events the Raising of the Life Saving Flags, to signify 
the opening of the Life Saving season, was held at the Dee Why 
SLSC. Attending were Tony Abbott our local Federal member, Mike 
Gallacher the Minister of Police and Emergency Services, Brad 
Hazzard our local State member, Michael Regan recently re-elected 
Mayor of Warringah, Graham Ford AM the President of SLSA, 
Tony Haven the President of SLSNSW, Phil Vanny AM the CEO of 
SLSNSW, David Murray the President of SLSSNB, Steve McInnes 
the CEO of SLSSNB, Life Members of SLSNSW and Life Members 
of Dee Why SLSC and special guest Olympic Gold Medallist Murray 
Stewart from the K4 1000 kayak team. The event was covered by 
all the media and unbeknown to me Sky News did the whole thing 
live to air.

The Club was represented by members Steve Richards and Jack-
Henry Bryant as IRB Crew, Connor Wylie, Dan Rashleigh, Harry 
Marshall, Cara Jacobs and Adam Hockley on boards, Courtney 
Campbell, Pia Jacobs, Issi Jacobs, Ashleigh Portelli, Taylah Portelli, 
Emily Hockley, Harley Hannam, Nash Hannam, Mikey Molinia and 
Connor Tyson as Nippers, with attending the speeches as Active 
Lifesavers Denise Gammie, Warren Hannam, Matt Molinia and 
Herve Vichmont. 

A great display of Life Saving equipment was on the water with three 
jet skis and two IRB’s (Dee Why and Long Reef) and the Westpac 
Lifesaver Helicopter and right on cue about 20 dolphins started 
leaping out of the water about 20 metres behind the approaching 
display.
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That weekend over 180 paddlers completed the most successful 
Rocks to Reef Ski Race with Tim Jacobs of Freshwater SLSC again 
triumphant.

Peter Hatfield did a fantastic job of organising the event (that is 
what he told me to write) and I know he appreciated the help of so 
many Club members. It was great to see three of our women’s boat 
crew down from the Central Coast to help out on the day and repay 
the assistance that other Club members provide their event on the 
Ocean Thunder days.   

After five years of toil, discovery, and late nights our Centenary 
publication arrived at the end of August in time for Father’s Day. 
After viewing the ‘book’ on a computer screen for so many years it 
was nice to see it in its final form. Congratulations to the Centenary 
Committee of Richie Burke, Barry Cardiff, John Ewing, Dave Lang, 
Michael Crawford, Nelson Chad and myself for the work identifying 
the content and to John Taylor, the author and Tony Gordon, the 
designer for such a unique publication. Also Kevin Weldon, a long-
time supporter of the club, bought to bear his years of publishing 
experience and expertise to the whole look of the publication. If you 
have not purchased your copy please make contact with the club 
and we can provide you with a copy.

And while the publication was certainly a milestone in our Centenary 
celebrations the one weekend of the year was fast approaching at 
which we could all celebrate the success of the club for the past 
100 years.

Over 150 people met at the Dee Why RSL on Friday 12 October, 
our 100 year anniversary date, to meet and commence the weekend 
celebrations. There were many people that I had not seen for close 
on 40 years and of course many a tall tale got taller as the night 
wore on.

This was only the forerunner to what was expected to be a 
celebration not to be forgotten. For many months Barry Cardiff, 
Michael Crawford, Cheryl Ewing, Kerryn Chad, David Gilmour and 
Craig Barnes had met and planned the ultimate celebration our 
Centenary Dinner and we would not to be disappointed. I don’t think 
I have ever attended a function that without exception every person 
I spoke with commented favourably on the quality and quantity of 
the food and the quality of the wines served. And of course limited 
speakers on the night meant it was a night to renew friendships and 
for the conversation to flow. Many were seen dancing the evening to 
an end when all of a sudden midnight arrived and the festivities to 
end only to continue the next day at the surf club.

A sunny Sunday dawned and the club house spruced up for the 
members to enjoy a cold beverage and some quality canapés and of 

course more stories from and about the bold and beautiful. This part 
of the celebration came about because of the sub-committee I had 
the pleasure to work with and I thank  Sue Cheney, Annie Yabsley, 
Tracey Horner, Jill Weisse, Bec Marshall, Kathy Sharkey, Nan 
Crawford and every now and then because I needed male company 
Mike Crawford and Gary Yabsley. As a weekend of celebration 
it was the best one in a hundred years and a fitting tribute to the 
approximately 7,000 members who have donned the royal blue and 
white of the Dee Why SLSC.

The next big event on the Dee Why surf sports calendar was 
Rescue 2012 World Championships in Adelaide held from 5 
November until 18 November. We again took away a dedicated 
team of Marti Quinn, Cam Wiley in the Masters and Emma Jeffcoat 
in the Youth Championships. Cam convinced some poor pommie 
that his chances of success lay with us so Andy ‘Milky’ Byatt joined 
the club and competed for us in Adelaide. Andy was in Australia 
on a Churchill Scholarship as he is employed by GB Surf and was 
working with SLSA and several of the State organisations over a 
couple of months and so he was able to join us and helped us feature 
in the point score for the Masters with a third in the 30 to 39 Ironman 
and Cam claimed a bronze medal in the 50 to 54 Ironman. Several 
other events were contested with our likely best result being a third 
place in the 140 years Taplin Relay until Cam had the unfortunate 
occurrence of a Canadian competitor still going seaward on the 
board came into contact with Cams head as he was in the swim leg 
going out. Cam claims concussion set in at this point but continued 
the event only to round the swim buoys and have the Canadian hit 
him again on the way back in. We think the second blow may have 
caused the most damage, Cam collapsed across the finish line into 
the foetal position claiming injury etc. which was duly noted by the 
officials who were discussing if he had crossed the finish line on his 
feet!! He declined further involvement in the competition that day 
which we thought was a bit rough…..not like he had lost a limb or 
anything!!!

Our representation heated up the moment Emma Jeffcoat hit the 
beach in the Youth World Championships. Emma was a finalist in 
the Iron Women, Board, Swim and Ski not a bad effort for a one 
women team, but her triumph was in the 2km Beach Run where she 
streeted the field to win gold and become the Australian and World 
Champion in her age group.

While all this was going on the return of Ocean Thunder happened 
after a seasons break with another fabulous effort by the club hosting 
the event for the four rounds in November, December, January and 
February. Our girls crew the ‘Oh La La’s’ acquitted themselves 
well and were in the hunt for a series podium finish until the last 
round was cancelled after only one row because of the big surf. 
Mention should be made of the commitment to their sport exhibited 
by Aleshia Pollicina, Carla Ellis, Kelly Graham and Laini Collyer who 
travelled at least twice a week to training from the Central Coast, 
travelled to carnivals all over the State and of course to patrol at 
Dee Why, a fantastic effort. In addition when they were available 
they came and helped out at the fundraisers always travelling down 
from the Central Coast.

February rolls around and introduces a month which will be the 
biggest event month in the clubs history. On the first weekend after 
Dan and Mary Payne’s wedding on the Friday night we have the 
combined Sydney Morning Herald Sun Run and followed by a day 
of Ocean Thunder. Sydney has not seen rain like it for so long and it 
is a difficult day to get the troops motivated and out of bed on a wet 
morning however they turned up in force and just got on with making 
sure 6,500 runners had a great event and they stayed around to 
help set up for the Thunder. However if we thought that 6,500 was a 
big number the next weekend was to provide us with a spectacle not 
scene on Dee Why beach since the 1975 Australian Championships.

administration reports

3

DYSLSC President - Simon Moriarty with SLSA President - Graham Ford



. . .

4

One of our Centenary celebration events was to host the Sydney 
Northern Beaches Branch Championships. In fact by the time we 
reached this weekend we had already hosted the Branch Board 
riding Championships at which the Dee Why club board riders 
excelled and two nights of theory for the Champion Lifesaver and 
Patrol Competition. Thankfully Brookvale Insurance Brokers came 
on board and supplied us lime green work party shirts which made 
us easy to find which was going to be a godsend at one of the 
Championships.

Saturday was the turn of the Master, Life Saving and R&R events 
to be completed. Dee Why beach of course reverted to its usual 
summer state of high tides and sea weed from the corner to the 
pole with in some places the weed feet thick in the water. Things 
went well and we finished the day feeling like hosting the Branch 
Championships was not that difficult. We were in for a shock.

Sunday at 5am we started to arrive to set up the beach for the Nippers 
Championships, however we were beaten to the beach by several 
other clubs who had set up tents parked trailers etc. sometime in the 
early morning. The onslaught of people never stopped throughout 
the day and because of the weed and high tide the program had to 
change and we had to be flexible in our set up procedures to meet 
the demands of the event. The club tents started at the walkway 
north of the club and went to Long Reef so that became the extent 
of the competition arena with the addition of the main beach area in 
front of the club.

The BBQ had the biggest day in its history and we were thankful 
that a team from Officeworks came along and helped out, in all I 
counted 12 people working on the BBQ all day with only some of 
them getting a break. There wasn’t a roll, piece of bread or sausage 
left in Dee Why by the time we finished. I think the shortest I saw 
the line was with forty people and to add to the chaos in that area 
the guys from Chill Bar brought their mobile coffee cart down and 
were flat out from about 7am to 2pm. This is a day that will go down 
in the folklore of the Dee Why SLSC for the size of the crowd on the 
beach and the efforts by so many club members to make the day 
a success.

By comparison the following weekends Open Championships were 
a very tame affair with still a good crowd, and of course the weed, 
but nowhere near the chaotic scenes of the previous Sunday. While 
the outcome was a successful Branch Championships, lots of 
medals with high hopes for the Branch Handicap point score, a very 
tired work force and some nice funds in the bank I think it is only the 
Treasurer that thinks we should do this every couple of years. For 
me it is a once in a century event.

Having hardly drawn breath we were into our next event to celebrate 
our Centenary with a civic reception by Warringah Council. It was 
pleasing to have our service to the community recognised in such 
a special way and the night was made even more memorable 
with the presentation by the granddaughter of a club member who 
attended our second surf carnival in 1915 notable for the first paid 
display of surf board riding by Duke Kahanamoku. Lynnette Smith’s 
grandfather had the Duke sign a copy of his competitor disc and she 
presented the club with a framed replica of that program with the 
Dukes signature displayed.

The State Age, Masters and Open championships was next on the 
club program with only small teams attending with results elsewhere 
in the report. One of the impositions that clubs now have when 
competing at State and Australian championships is the provision of 
officials and IRB crews for water safety. I would like to thank Grant 
Marshall, Roger Jacobs, Matt Molinia, Warren Hannam, Steve 
Richards and Hugh Long who provided water safety at various times 
throughout the three Championships with Grant, Warren, Matt and 

myself also officiating. Without their assistance the club would not 
have been able to compete.

Our next event is one of our major fundraising events the Sun Herald 
Surf Swim. NSW had a summer of big surfs and closed beaches 
and we had already postponed the Dee Why to Manly swim due 
to be held in early February and changed it to a Manly to Dee Why 
swim to be held on this day. The day before the swim the surf was 
large and the beach closed again as it had been for the last seven 
days. It did not auger well for the Sunday. At dawn we were met 
with still large seas but they were rising and at the appointed time 
for the start it was expected to be 3 metre swells heading into Dee 
Why beach. Needless to say it was cancelled and postponed to 24 
November this year. Disappointing for everyone but definitely the 
correct decision.

Finally the Aussies came around after being moved out of the 
Queensland cyclone season and relocated to North Kirra and 
Tugun for the boats. The surf that had been pounding the NSW 
coast had also done its best in SE Queensland and Tugun beach 
no longer existed so the boats were moved to North Kirra. Results 
are elsewhere in the report but there is no doubt that the stand 
out performances were from the board riding team coming home 
with two silver and three bronze medals from nearly three hundred 
entries. Emma Jeffcoat also excelled with a gold medal in the U/19 
2km Beach Run making back to back wins in this event as well as 
being a finalist in the U/19 Iron women, single ski, board and swim 
and teamed up with Madi Quinn to feature in the final of the Open 
double ski. It would be remiss of me not to mention the role Paige 
Wiseman played in stepping up to the Open female team events 
with Emma and Madi. At her age of 16 it was a tremendous effort 
especially when you consider in the board relay in her leg she was 
up against Courtney Hancock on one side and Brodie Moir on the 
other, both female superstars in surf Life Saving.

For over twenty years the gym has worked with an uneven floor 
which limited the useable floor space. Prior to the season saw some 
dedicated club members get in and firstly jackhammer the floor and 
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then the day of the big concrete pour which saw long time member 
Ben Yabsley take command and work the barrow with the mud            
(I have all the technical terms down pat) ably assisted by Ben Davies 
and Dan Payne. Meanwhile inside Grant Marshall, Marty Quinn, 
Roger Jacobs and the fantastically attired Peter Hatfield worked on 
levelling the concrete (I am sure that there were others on the day 
so thank you to them as well). Meanwhile Phil Thomas and I had the 
strategic job of keeping out of the way, counting the barrow loads 
and enjoying the sunshine.

Around this time we convinced Vaughn Williams to take over as 
Gym Manager and he approached his first Committee meeting in 
that role with a $20,000 wish list; and he did pretty well at getting 
what he wanted.

With some new machines and several of the older but still useable 
machines refurbished the renovated gym re-opened on time and 
within budget. A huge thank you to all those that assisted in the 
process and to the members’ patience while the work was done. Of 
course everything has a price and you will notice a slight increase 
in gym membership fees which reflects the quality of what is now on 
offer.	

All members would be aware of the tragedies at recent Australian 
Surf Life Saving Championships. SLSA flagged that it intended to 
make it compulsory for all members training or competing in the 
water in SLSA approved activities to wear florescent   pink vests. 
While this was not to come in for two years the Club decided to go 
on the front foot and compel Nipper members to wear the vests 
on Sunday mornings and when training for competition and when 
competing. Steve Scott and Matt Molinia approached the Dee Why 
Grand Shopping Centre to gauge their reaction to a three year 
sponsorship of the pink vests for the Nipper section of the club. They 
immediately grabbed the idea as another way of supporting the Club 
and getting their message across to the crowds of people who flock 
to Dee Why Beach. They also came on board when we decided that 
all senior members of the Club should also follow suit and train and 
compete on the same basis as the Nippers.   

I have undertaken a program of sourcing and applying for grants 
from all levels of Government and the private philanthropic sector 
of the community. We have had much success in this area with 
the receipt of a grant from the Australian Department of Families, 
Housing, Community Services and Indigenous Affairs for a state of 
the art IRB radio. We have again applied in this years’ round for 
two training defibrillators and a baby training defibrillator. Speaking 
of defibrillators we have supported the Manly Women’s’ Shelter by 
providing the clubhouse for their fundraisers and in return one of 
their Executive Ellie Hunt purchased for us two training defibrillators 
which they presented to the Club in May. Officeworks who assisted 
us with the BBQ at the Nipper Branch Championships also helped 
in fundraising for an active defibrillator which was presented to the 
Club in late April and will be housed in the Betty Barry room. 

We were unsuccessful in our Dollar for Dollar application for an All-
Terrain Vehicle (ATV) however we were successful in receiving one 
at half price from the SLSA and BRP Powercraft Equipment Grant 
for a Commander 800 ATV. A similar vehicle was a real workhorse 
for us during the Branch Championship weekends and is the final 
piece of equipment to make the patrols full self-sufficient in towing 
the patrol trailer (another $4$ grant success), IRB and for general set 
up use at events. The vehicle is away being serviced as I write this 
report and will be ready for the first event the Rocks to Reef Ocean 
Series Ski Race in mid-September and then for patrols. 	

One of the items that has been missing form our Life Saving 
resources is a public address system to allow us to effectively 
communicate with the public at times when that is most important 

like in the case of a lost child. When Council replaced the roof on the 
clubhouse we had them place wires for a PA system in the relevant 
places for when we ever acquired one and through a grant from 
the NSW Government Department of Trade & Investment and the 
excellent work of installation by club member Roger Jacobs the PA 
system is now installed ready for the new season. 	It is hoped that 
Council will extend the speakers around to the rocks off the light 
poles so that the patrol and Lifeguards are able to section off the 
beach for announcements thus making it even more effective as a 
communication resource.

Our long association with Dee Why RSL continues to flourish and 
this year after informal discussions we returned to a donation 
program that allows us to more adequately plan our expenditure as 
it is provided to us at peak times throughout our season. As it was 
our Centenary year I decided that the surf club should strengthen its 
ties with the RSL Sub-Branch and so on Anzac Day at the Sunrise 
service held at the RSL Club I laid one of our Centenary books at 
the Cenotaph to be distributed to a local school. I hope that future 
Presidents will continue this initiative.

Ausgrid has been a sponsor of Surf Life Saving Sydney Northern 
Beaches for many years and as such provide support to each of 
the 21 clubs. Ausgrid also support the Central Coast and Hunter 
Branches however this season they took their sponsorship one step 
further towards a practical solution to increasing electricity prices 
and building a sustainable world. Dee Why along with Avoca Beach 
on the Central Coast and Caves Beach in the Hunter area were 
selected for a retrofit and over $50,000 was spent on our club alone 
with new fridges, complete replacement of all lights with efficient 
globes, new solar hot water with gas back-up and updating all exit 
signage to current standards. We now have access to an Ausgrid 
website which we can monitor our electricity usage by the hour 
allowing us to determine if there needs to be remedial action taken. 
Warringah Council have also done their bit to assist with reducing 
our electricity costs by recently installing more solar panels which 
along with the Ausgrid improvements should see a definite reduction 
in our usage and hopefully a reduction in our costs and provide a far 
more sustainable building.

We have a close relationship with Brookvale Rotary who has taken 
over the running of the Pub2Pub the last few years; in fact they 
presented us with a $3,000 gift for our Centenary celebrations 
this season. Recently I was asked to nominate members for their 
Community Service Awards and it is pleasing to record that Sue 
Cheney and Matt Molinia were recognised for their contribution to 
the surf club and the community at large; both very worthy recipients. 

I was very pleased to accept a position as a judge on the Warringah 
Council Australia Day Awards panel, probably something I should 
have considered more closely as the judging was done on the 
evening I flew back in from London, however it was amazing to 
see the variety of people working very hard to assist others in our 
community and it was particularly pleasing to have club member 
Taylah Davies be recognised with an Outstanding Community 
Service award. Taylah received the award for her work with a 
school Hip Hop dance troupe which she has taken the lead with the 
rehearsals and fundraising at times using the surf club. 

Early in the season your club was honoured with a Certificate of 
Commendation at the NSW Parliament Community Service Awards 
for our Centenary of Community Service. On the afternoon of the 
awards ceremony I was at the World Championships in Adelaide 
so Denise Gammie and Liam French represented the club and 
accepted the award on behalf of all of us. 

Part of that community service was again recognised when we were 
approached by Gary Martin father of former professional surfer Toby 
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Martin who was organising surfboards and rescue boards to be 
sent to Naru for the newly formed Naru Surf Life Saving Club. SLSA 
wrote a letter of thanks for our contribution and the world’s newest 
surf club commenced operations in early May. This continues our 
history of helping new surf clubs in developing nations following on 
from the work done by Nelson Chad and others in Bali many years 
ago.

Several months ago I was approached by club members and asked 
if I would consider discussing the setting up of a Nelson Chad 
Foundation to benefit club members. Preliminary discussions with 
Kerryn Chad gave us the go ahead to progress the matter and 
currently we are seeking pro bono legal services and sounding 
out potential Board members to implement and monitor the ideals 
expressed within the Foundation Charter which of course will reflect 
the ideals of Nelson. 

When I took the role of President one of the areas that I had identified 
that was under-utilised was the hiring out of the various club rooms 
to the community which allows us to raise significant funds for club 
use. In fact under our Deed of Grant we are required to make the 
Swan Lounge available for community use. It is pleasing to report 
that Bec Marshall has taken to the role of Function Manager and 
has spent considerable hours ensuring that the club has a regular 
income stream. We are starting to attract the corporate sector who 
are discovering our facilities and making improvements like installing 
IT equipment which will allow us to offer that at an additional cost.

Of course Bec is only one of the people who have contributed to 
making this Centenary year such a success and stand out. Many 
have already been mentioned however to my Deputy President Marty 
Quinn, Secretary Liam French, Treasurer Dave Lang, Club Captain 
Denise Gammie and Junior Development Officer Matt Molinia my 
gratitude for your commitment this season, one which has included 
many additional events testing your skills to the utmost. Of course 
without the rest of the Management Committee our jobs would be so 
much more difficult so to Chief Instructor Vaughn Williams, Assistant 
Chief Instructor Caroline Guernier, Registrar (and so much more) 
Sue Cheney, Vice Captains Peter Firminger, Darren Armitage and 
Steve Richards, Competition Manager Phil Thomas, Boat Captain 
Steve Scott, IRB Captain Alan Skinner, IRB Vice-Captain Herve 
Viechmont, Board and Ski Captain Pete Hatfield, Cadet Co-ordinator 
Roger Jacobs, Facilities Building Manager Grant Marshall, First 
Aid Officer Sam Skinner, Nipper (Parent) Representatives Warren 
Hannam and Roger Jacobs, Youth Representative Jack-Henry 
Bryant, Licensee Peter Greenow, Radio Officer Ross Gammage, 
and Head Coach Marty Quinn thank you all for your contribution and 
support in the running the club.

Of course assisting these people in their roles are a number of 
people such as our BBQ Co-ordinator Dannealle Hannam, Uniform 
Shop Manager Janine Portelli, our Club Coach Scott Mortimer, and 
our BBQ King and Queen Ivor Rees and Mary Gason among many 
others who have assisted so much over the past season.

Of course to even open the doors to provide our unique service we 
need the assistance of our many partners so to the Branch who 
certainly has a role to play in the life of the Dee Why SLSC and to 
President David Murray, CEO Steve McInnes and the rest of the 
Branch Executive I thank you for your support of the Club and to the 
staff of the Branch thank you for all the assistance you provided to 
myself and other Club members on so many occasions.   

Overarching all of our activities is the very important role of our 
benefactors. To Warringah Council and Mayor Michael Regan and 
CEO Rik Hart and all of the Councillors and staff thank you for 
providing valuable assistance in maintaining our clubhouse.

To the partners of our Club, Taste Living Brookvale, Fairfax Events, 
Dee Why Grand Shopping Centre, Dee Why RSL, Bennett Boards, 
Big Brother Movement, Raine & Horne Dee Why and Collaroy, Reilly 
& Sons, Mason & Brophy, Chill Bar, Wavescape Orthodontics and 
our newest sponsor Deck Bar and Dining and all those employers of 
Club members who are unaware of their valuable contribution thank 
you for your new and continued support.

To the Branch sponsors Ausgrid Australia, Coca-Cola AMATIL, 
Streets Ice Cream, DHL, Westpac and Telstra thank you for 
providing the funding to keep the Branch operating and allowing 
them to provide the services they do to the Club.

And so to the future….with the number of initiatives completed over 
the last three seasons the club is on a sound footing to take full 
advantage of the opportunities they have provided however we 
cannot rest on our success but continue to strive for improvement 
and seek out ways to be smarter in the way we operate.

One area that is always on the agenda is securing long term funding 
for our operations and as I write this report in late May there has 
been an approach by a Councillor opening discussions on ways in 
which we may be able to secure funding by utilising parts of the 
clubhouse. While discussions are in a very early stage, and in fact 
may not necessarily proceed much further, our past experience with 
Council has been long and drawn out negotiations so it is hoped 
these discussions will bear fruit in a timelier manner.  

I had several projects that I wanted to see completed in my time as 
President and most of those have reached their conclusion although 
there are a couple more new ones that are still in development 
which I will see through before I call time in this role. I see a five 
year window of opportunity before one becomes stale and the 
organisation needs new enthusiasm and direction from among our 
talented membership. Having completed three years, and without 
being knocked over in the rush of people clamouring for the position, 
it is my intention to complete two more years before handing over. 
So all those budding Presidents out there, and a few of the younger 
members have expressed to me where I have gone wrong so maybe 
it is time for an under 30 years of age President?

In thinking of a conclusion to my report I thought back to how I 
started it and I think the words I used to conclude my speech at the 
Centenary Dinner cannot be improved upon and so in conclusion:         

The people that need to be thanked are those that that met on Dee 
Why beach on the 12th October 1912 to elect the first Committee 
of President JH Rose, Honorary Secretary FC Bauer, Honorary 
Treasurer M Mahony and Club Captain H Bloomfield.

Fifty years ago EJ Thomas concluded the Drowning Don’t Die wIth 
“There are many more stories of Dee Why and of the men who 
passed through the club’s portals; incidents and characters. They 
have bequeathed a legend from the clubs first 50 years, and now, 
as the club stands on the threshold of further years of service and 
progress, more incidents and more characters will make a mark on 
the future that lies ahead. The year of the clubs centenary should, 
indeed, be a noteworthy epoch”.  

“Those early members left a heritage, exemplified over the 
intervening years, which has placed the club in the proud position 
it holds today”. 

Those words have stood the test of time and provide a fitting end to 
my report on the Centenary year of the Dee Why Surf Life Saving 
Club.

administration reports



Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Annual Report 2012–2013 7

administration reports

SECRETARY’S REPORT 
by Liam French

As Honorary Secretary of Dee Why SLSC and with this our centenary 
year, I am pleased to edit and present the 2012-2013 Annual Report. 

Clocking up 3 years in this role, I have seen Dee Why SLSC serve 
the local community with commitment and dedication. I’m confident 
that the strong leadership of the committee with their focus on a clear 
plan for the future will ensure the club’s continued success.

I have had many come to my aid throughout these past seasons; 
including our President, Simon Moriarty, our Vice President, Marty 
Quinn, Treasurer, David Lang, Club Registrar, Sue Cheney and our 
Club Captain, Denise Gammie. I know there are many others that I 
have forgotten - to you I am also very thankful.

In my tenure as secretary I have found that utilising technology such 
as Internet applications and social media platforms, have proven to 
be an extremely important communication and promotion tool for the 
club. If I could give my successor one piece of advice it would be to 
embrace this wonderful (and time consuming!) medium and vigilantly 
preserve the value it brings to our organisation.

I have no doubt that the next elected to fill the Secretary position 
in the 2013-2014 Season, will continue to actively contribute to the 
advancement of the club utilising all available resources.
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The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial report should be prepared in 
accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the committee the financial statements as set out on the following pages:
1. The accompanying income and expenditure statement is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the profit (or loss) of the association   
    including fundraising appeals for the last financial year;
2. The accompanying balance sheet is drawn up as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the association including fundraising 	       	
    appeals as at the end of the financial year;
3. The provisions of the act, the regulations under the act, and the conditions attached to the fundraising authority have been complied with 	      	
    by the association, and;
4. The internal controls exercised by the association are appropriate and effective in accounting for all income received and applied by the  	     	
    association from any of its fundraising appeals, and;
5. At the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the association will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.
6. The accounts and associated records have been properly kept during the year, and
7. Money received as a result of fundraising appeals conducted during the year has been properly accounted for.
8. The principal activities of the association during the financial year were the provision of lifesaving services and no significant change to 	    	
    these activities has occurred.

The accounts of the Association have been made out in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards, other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements, the provisions of the Associations Incorporation Act 2009 (NSW) and the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 (NSW).
This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee and is signed for and on behalf of the Committee by:

President: _________________________________________________________
		    S. Moriarty

Treasurer: _________________________________________________________
		    D. Lang

Dated: 10 July 2013

Original signed copy held on file at DYSLSC

Statement by Members of The Committee

TREASURER’S REPORT 
by David Lang

Trust Funds

Since 1975 when the late Frank Conroy established an anonymous donor fund, the club has been the beneficiary of a number of bequests. 
Committees of the day have nominated these funds outside of general income either by virtue of conditions attached or a desire to provide for the 
long term future of the club.

Frank Conroy Scholarship
At the time of his initial donation, Frank expressed the wish that the funds be established to help junior members improve their competitive abilities 
To date, grants have been made to junior members to assist in subsidising their costs on professional instruction. In his will Frank hoped, without 
binding the club, that the funds should continue in this vain. To ensure that Frank’s scholarship continues to support junior members, the committee 
decided to put some restraints on the monies. It was decided:
• Only the annual interest accured on the capital be allocated for assistance

• Candidates are chosen through selection criteria laid down by the junior and senior club committees.

James MacLachlan Fund
Jim MacLachlan was an associate member of the club from 1955 who on his death in 1981 provided for us as a beneficiary in his estate. No 
specific conditions were attached to the grant. The funds have been invested and the income has been applied at certain times to defray costs of 
the club patrol efficiency competition.

Betty Barry Memorial Scholarship Fund
The Betty Barry fund was established by the then Ladies Auxiliary to remember the contribution of their late President and Life Member. The club 
now administers the fund in similar terms and conditions to the Frank Conroy Scholarship.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE DEE WHY SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INCORPORATED

Report on the Financial Report
We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated 
(the association), which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 April 2013, and the income and expenditure statement and cash flow statement, a 
summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory information and the statement by members of the committee.

Committee’s Responsibility for the Financial Report
The committee of Dee Why Surf Lifesaving Club Incorporated is responsible for the preparation of the financial report, and has determined that the 
basis of preparation described in Note 1 is appropriate to meet the requirements of the NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and Regulations, the 
NSW Associations Incorporation Act 2009 and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The committee’s responsibility also includes such 
internal control as the committee determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion is expressed as to whether the accounting policies 
used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate to meet the needs of the members. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing 
Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Auditors’ Opinion

Qualification: Donations and Fund Raising Activities
It is not practical for the Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated to maintain an effective system of internal control over donations and fund 
raising activities until their entry in the accounting records. Accordingly, my audit in relation to donations and fund raising was limited to amounts 
recorded.

Original signed copy held on file at DYSLSC

Independent Auditor’s Report

finances

I, David Lang of Dee Why Surf Lifesaving Club Inc., certify that:

	 (a) I attended the annual general meeting of the association held on 28 July 2013.
	 (b) The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2013 were submitted to the members of the association at its annual general meeting.

Dated: 28 July 2013

Committee Member: _________________________________________________________
	                             David Lang - Treasurer

Certificate by Members of The Committee
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Qualified Audit Opinion
In my opinion, subject to the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had the limitation discussed in the 
qualification paragraph not existed, the financial report of the Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated presents fairly in all material respects 
the financial position of the Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated as at 30 April 2013 and of its financial performance for the year then 
ended in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements, and the NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991, 
the NSW Associations incorporation Act and the club’s constitution.

Basis of Accounting
Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to Note 1, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report has been prepared to meet 
the above requirements. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.

Name of Firm: 	 W&D Financial Services
	 Chartered Accountants

Name of Partner: _________________________________________________________
                             Peter Power

Qualification: 	 Individual Auditor - 730
	 Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia - 15380

Address: 	 Suite 17, Pittwater Place, 10 Park Street, Mona Vale NSW 2103

Dated: 17 July 2013

Original signed copy held on file at DYSLSC

Auditor’s Independence Declaration Under Section 307C Of The Corporations Act 2001
To The Director Of Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated

We declare, that to the best of our knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 April 2013 there have been:
	
	 (i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
	
	 (ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Name of Firm: 	 W&D Financial Services
	 Chartered Accountants

Name of Partner: _________________________________________________________
                             Peter Power

Qualification: 	 Individual Auditor - 730
	 Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia - 15380

Address: 	 Suite 17, Pittwater Place, 10 Park Street, Mona Vale NSW 2103

Dated: 17 July 2013

Original signed copy held on file at DYSLSC



XXXXX

Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Annual Report 2012–2013 11

finances

Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated A.B.N. 39 393 896 380

Income Statement of Financial Performance For The Year Ended 30 April 2013

	 2013 	 2012
	 $ 	 $

INCOME
Donations 	 72,954.73 	 87,528.53
Functions 	 144,529.61 	 87,337.56
Grants 	 38,220.00 	 11,442.37
Gym Memberships 	 4,090.91 	 3,178.18
Carnival Entry Fees 	 9,054.54 	 6,659.10
	 268,849.79 	 196,145.74

OTHER INCOME
Subscriptions 	 47,080.00 	 47,268.36
Revenues Betty Barry Bar 	 13,270.27 	 16,930.25
Interest Received 	 6,075.53 	 10,069.17
Clothing & Miscellaneous 	 18,147.21 	 21,957.09
Loss on Sale of Non-current Assets 	 (143.26) 	 (1,563.33)
Gross profit from rental operations 	 47,285.48 	 50,075.01
	 131,715.23 	 144,736.55
	 400,565.02 	 340,882.29

	 2013 	 2012
	 $ 	 $

EXPENSES
Annual Report 	 3,753.53 	 3,488.33
Association Charges and Awards 	 18,199.27 	 17,737.46
Auditor’s Remuneration 	 2,470.00 	 1,060.00
Bank Charges 	 2,004.84 	 1,420.17
Betty Barry Bar Expenses 	 5,882.11 	 6,511.86
Communications 	 1,089.88 	 1,586.75
Club Gear 	 65,314.97 	 15,360.39
Depreciation 	 42,635.40 	 41,330.58
Depreciation - Property Improvements 	 32,326.45 	 24,314.25
Entry Fees Carnivals 	 19,035.13 	 18,923.68
First Aid Equipment and Supplies 	 2,540.32 	 2,372.80
Functions 	 177,831.80 	 66,147.55
Hall Expenses 	 23,787.10 	 21,786.76
Inshore Rescue Boat 	 7,352.11 	 4,790.92
Insurance 	 4,845.50 	 4,526.84
Printing & Stationery 	 1,559.12 	 1,338.07
Repairs & Maintenance 	 11,479.16 	 9,436.89
Repairs - Building 	 5,185.85 	 3,257.58
Sundry Expenses 	 5,315.72 	 3,173.08
Training 	 7,526.17 	 5,698.35
Travelling Expenses 	 1,545.94 	 3,014.88
Trophies and Presentation 	 13,804.41 	 12,891.26
Utilities 	 8,084.91 	 8,275.75
	 463,569.69 	 278,444.20
(Loss) Profit before income tax 	 (63,004.67) 	 62,438.09
(Loss) Profit for the year 	 (63,004.67) 	 62,438.09
Retained earnings at 
the beginning of the
financial year 	 949,077.18 	 520,999.86
Extraordinary Items 	 - 	 (372,000.00)
Transfer To Reserves 	 (5,397.06) 	 6,360.77
Retained earnings at the 
end of the financial year	 891,469.57 	 949,077.18
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Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated
Balance Sheet 
For The Year Ended 30 April 2013

		  2013 	 2012
                                      	 NOTE 	 $ 	 $

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 	 2 	 231,687.36 	 217,813.78
Trade and Other Receivables 	 3 	 14,743.18 	 40,740.64
Other Assets 	 4 	 48,811.67 	 70,998.66
Financial assets 	 5 	 2.00 	 2.00
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 		  295,244.21 	 329,555.08

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 	 6 	 716,545.70 	 748,205.37
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 	 716,545.70 	 748,205.37
TOTAL ASSETS 		  1,011,789.91 	 1,077,760.45

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors 		  4,413.47 	 5,564.49
GST Payable 		  1,176.46 	 2,991.31
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 	 5,589.93 	 8,555.80
TOTAL LIABILITIES 		  5,589.93 	 8,555.80
NET ASSETS 		  1,006,199.98 	 1,069,204.65

MEMBERS’ FUNDS
Reserves 	 7 	 114,730.41 	 120,127.47
Retained earnings 	 8 	 891,469.57 	 949,077.18
TOTAL MEMBERS’ FUNDS 		  1,006,199.98 	 1,069,204.65

	 2013 	 2012
                                              NOTE 	 $ 	 $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Donations and Grants 	 133,354.73 	 449,002.90
Payments to suppliers and employees 	(409,627.31) 	 (333,916.71)
Member Subscriptions 	 47,155.00 	 47,103.36
Interest received 	 6,075.53 	 10,069.17
Other Operating Receipts 	 231,798.32 	 213,473.96
Rent Received 	 48,562.75 	 48,420.46
Net cash provided by 
operating activities	 57,319.02 	 434,153.14

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, 
plant and equipment 	 4,100.00 	 80.00
Payments for Buildings 
and Equipment 	 (47,545.44) 	 (495,698.96)
Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities 	 (43,445.44) 	 (495,618.96)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 	 13,873.58 	 (61,465.82)
Cash at beginning of financial year 	 217,813.78 	 279,279.60
Cash at end of financial year    2 	 231,687.36 	 217,813.78

Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated
Cash Flow Statement 
For The Year Ended 30 April 2013
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Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated A.B.N. 39 393 896 380 
Notes To The Financial Statements For the Year Ended 30 April 2013

finances

1  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting requirements of the Associations 
Incorporation Act NSW. The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity.
The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historic costs and does not take into account changing money values 
or, except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current assets.
The following significant accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless stated otherwise, have been adopted in the 
preparation of this financial report.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Leasehold improvements and office equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.
The depreciable amount of all PPE is depreciated over the useful lives of the assets to the association commencing from the time the asset is 
held ready for use.
Leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Depreciation

The depreciation method and useful life used for items of property, plant and equipment (excluding freehold land) reflects the pattern in which 
their future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the association. Depreciation commences from the time the asset is held ready 
for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the 
improvements. The depreciation method and useful life of assets is reviewed annually to ensure they are still appropriate.

Impairment of Assets
At the end of each reporting period, the association assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. The assessment will 
consider both external and internal sources of information. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing 
the recoverable amount of that asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use, to the asset’s carrying amount. 
Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables
Accounts receivable are recognised initially at the transaction price (i.e. cost) and are subsequently measured at cost less provision for impairment. 
Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are 
classified as non-current assets.
At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of accounts receivable and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there is 
any objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable. If so, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income and expenditure 
statement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities 
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Revenue and Other Income
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts and volume rebates 
allowed. For this purpose, deferred consideration is not discounted to present values when recognising revenue. 
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

Accounts Payable and Other Payables
Accounts payable and other payables represent the liabilities at the end of the reporting period for goods and services received by the association 
that remain unpaid.
Accounts payable are recognised at their transaction price. Accounts payable are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the 
Australian Tax Office (ATO).
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable 
to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated A.B.N. 39 393 896 380 
Notes To The Financial Statements For the Year Ended 30 April 2013

2  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at Commonwealth Bank - General 	 29,681.76 	 10,166.24
Cash at Commonwealth Bank - Commercial Bills	 131,347.17 	 173,958.44
Cash at Commonwealth Bank - Fundraising/Centenary 	 34,557.93 	 17,153.12
Cash at Commonwealth Bank - Swan Lounge 	 11,505.68 	 1,321.73
Cash at Commonwealth Bank - Equipment 	 24,594.82 	 15,214.25
	 231,687.36 	 217,813.78

Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statement is reconciled to the related items in the balance sheet as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 	 231,687.36 	 217,813.78
	 231,687.36 	 217,813.78

Reconciliation of Operating Surplus\ (Deficit) to Net Cash Flows from Operations
Operating Surplus\ (Deficit) 	 (63,004.67) 	 434,438.09
Depreciation 	 74,961.85 	 65,644.83
Goods & Services Tax 	 (2,875.29) 	 11,097.41
(Profit) \ Loss on Sale of Non-Current Assets 	 143.26 	 1,563.33
Loan – Subsidiary 	 (518.50) 	 (503.00)	
Other Assets 	 22,186.99 	 (48,000.11)
Sundry Debtors 	 27,576.40 	 (28,837.50)
Sundry Creditors 	 (1,151.02) 	 (1,249.91)
	 57,319.02 	 434,153.14

3  Trade and Other Receivables

Trade Debtors 	 2,435.60 	 30,012.00
Loan to Subsidiary 	 9,487.33 	 8,968.83
Input Tax Credits 	 2,820.25 	 1,759.81
	 14,743.18 	 40,740.64
	

4  Other Assets

Other Debtors 	 1,999.08 	 41,188.43
Stock on Hand – Uniforms 	 46,812.59 	 29,810.23
	 48,811.67 	 70,998.66

5  Financial Assets

Current
Investment in Subsidiary 	 2.00 	 2.00

2013                                           2012 
$                                                 $
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Dee Why Surf Life Saving Club Incorporated A.B.N. 39 393 896 380 
Notes To The Financial Statements For the Year Ended 30 April 2013

6  Property, Plant and Equipment

Surf Boats 	 134,573.23 	 135,242.14
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 	 (96,427.39) 	 (86,855.95)
	 38,145.84 	 48,386.19
Boards & Skis 	 99,914.38 	 98,164.74	
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 	 (77,957.04) 	 (68,973.48)
	 21,957.34 	 29,191.26
Life Saving Equipment 	 52,305.81 	 41,061.29
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 	 (29,157.88) 	 (26,874.31)
	 23,147.93 	 14,186.98
Furniture & Fittings 	 52,757.03 	 48,024.76
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 	 (41,876.44) 	 (39,600.92)
	 10,880.59 	 8,423.84
Trailers 	 23,875.91 	 23,875.91
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 	 (20,877.97) 	 (19,593.14)
	 2,997.94 	 4,282.77
Computer Equipment 	 15,072.39 	 18,352.39
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 	 (14,094.53) 	 (17,075.39)
	 977.86 	 1,277.00
Inshore Rescue Boats 	 70,774.64 	 64,565.55
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 	 (39,956.98) 	 (44,678.72)
	 30,817.66 	 19,886.83
Club House Improvements 	 705,412.58 	 710,932.58
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 	 (117,792.04) 	 (88,362.08)
	 587,620.54 	 622,570.50
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 	 716,545.70 	 748,205.37

7  Reserves

James MacLachlan Fund 	 27,252.89 	 26,216.79
Frank Conroy Scholarship 	 69,460.81 	 76,578.95
Betty Barry Memorial Scholarship Fund 	 18,016.71 	 17,331.73
	 114,730.41 	 120,127.47

8  Retained Earnings

Retained earnings at the beginning of the financial year	 949,077.18 	 520,999.86
(Net loss) Net profit attributable to the association 	 (63,004.67) 	 434,438.09
Transfer To Reserves 	 5,397.06 	 (6,360.77)
Retained earnings at the end of the financial year 	 891,469.57 	 949,077.18

9  Financial Risk Management

The Association’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market instruments, short-term investments, accounts 
receivable and payable, loans to and from subsidiaries, bills and leases

10 Association Details
The registered office of the association is:		 Dee Why Surf Club, The Strand, Dee Why NSW 2099

The Principal place of business is:		 Dee Why Surf Club, The Strand, Dee Why NSW 2099

2013                                           2012 
$                                                 $
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From	 Amount
DONATIONS:
Armstrong Dr M 	 28.50
Basha D 	 5.00
BBM Ltd 	 5,000.00
Booth J 	 250.00
Brookvale Insurance Brokers 	 1,363.64
Chill Bar 	 3,000.00
Crews K 	 100.00
Deck 23 	 2,727.27
Dee Why Grand Shopping Centre 	 16,620.00
Dee Why Icepicks 	 500.00
Dee Why RSL Club Ltd - Cash Housie 	 6,542.00
DHL Ltd 	 1,337.14
Etherington N 	 20.00
Everyday Hero 	 1,643.18
Falvo C 	 28.50
Fox N 	 20.00
Horton T 	 43.00
Hudson R 	 12.00
Hurditch K 	 28.50
Lakeman A 	 70.00
Lawson B 	 50.00
Mason & Brophy Strata Management 	 1,500.00
McCarthy D 	 3.00
McGrath G 	 12.00
McKay T 	 200.00
Miscellaneous 	 500.00
Molinia M 	 330.00
Philips WJB 	 500.00
Prior J 	 100.00
Raine & Horne Real Estate - Dee Why 	 6,000.00
Rees I 	 100.00
Rose H 	 23.00
Rotary Club of Brookvale 	 2,500.00
Rotary Club of Warringah 	 400.00
Sir William Deane 	 250.00
Southern S 	 30.00
Surf Life Saving Australia - Boardies Day 	 257.00
Surf Life Saving NSW Inc - Donations & Raffles 	5,858.00
Taste Retail P\L 	 7,500.00
The Supply Hub 	 6,000.00
Thompson B 	 3.00
Wavescape Orthodontics 	 1,500.00

	 $ 72,954.73

GRANTS:	
Dee Why RSL Club 	 25,000.00
AUST Govt - DFACS - IRB Radio 	 3,850.00
NSW Govt - Trade & Investment - PA System 	 3,450.00
Warringah Council 	 5,920.00

	 $ 38,220.00  
	

Total Donations & Grants	   $ 111,174.73

	

DONATIONS & GRANTS 2012/13
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CLUB CAPTAIN’S REPORT 
by Denise Gammie

Everyone deserves to be listened to and heard.  I enjoyed listening 
to you all, some of you drove me nuts, but I wouldn’t have it any 
other way.  We have a melting pot of experience, old and fresh 
ideas.  Without being driven nuts, I wouldn’t have seen alternatives 
or different ways of doing things, fresh suggestions and the like.  You 
take what you need and think will help the majority.  This is what I 
took away from my time again this year as Club Captain and I thank 
you all for your thoughts and suggestions.  

We had an amazingly busy year which I know will be covered in 
other reports.  Not least of all it being our Club’s 100 years.  What 
an awesome year to be involved with the club plus the swims, runs, 
competitions that we hosted at our gorgeous beach.  Thanks to the 
many hands that made light work, then went on to patrol !

Due to the many events our club was hosting, this was one of the 
most challenging years in setting a patrol roster.  So many aspects 
must be taken into consideration and it takes a team of people from 
across the club to put heads together & come up with a roster that 
is fair for all.  I thank you patrolling members for stepping up and 
making sure that you covered your patrols, whether yourself or 
arranging a substitute.  To those that were the substitute for many a 

member, you are worth your weight in gold. Thank you. Some 
of you covered many a patrol, sometimes at the last minute, 
for this I sincerely appreciate everything you managed to do.

We’ve run many bronze, crew & driver courses this season.  
It has been wonderful to meet these new members and 
introduce them to patrols. It was also great to see many of our 
SRC’s step up and gain their bronze award. These are our 
leaders of the future and I hold a sense of pride for these fine 
young men & women and know they’ll do an awesome job.  
Many have or are stepping up to more responsibility and they 
have taken to it…well like ducks to water.
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We managed to perform once again a staggering 
amount of hours on the beach.  

• We had over 400,000 visitors to our fine beach.  

• We had more than 220 first aids performed

• We had more than 95 rescues performed

• We had more than 1820 preventative actions performed.    
nThis is important, prevention leads to less rescues, phew!

• We had over 15 beach closures, still brings out the 
qcrowds though!

• Remember our shark alarm day – that made the news as 
qyou may recall, that shark took a chunk out of Lifeguards 
qDanny’s board.

• One of my favourite statistics, we all patrolled over 7,480  
qhours.  Thank you for those hours of volunteer service.

Once again, please make sure you’re completing the patrol log 
correctly, in full and in a legible manner is important.  These statistics 
get collated & only help our cause.

Our patrol inspections went well for the most part.  Please, wear your 
uniform. The skull cap is most important.  It identifies who we are on 
the beach.

Housekeeping is important; it does not take much to keep the patrol 
trailer clean.  Take your rubbish with you – it’s not a bin.  I even made 
a “lost clothing bin”. The amount of clothing that was left behind was 
amazing.  

Remember to look after the equipment; including the boards.  We 
work hard to secure sponsorship/funds, so it’s disappointing to see 
boards thrown haphazardly into the patrol shed.  Come on people, 
look after the gear please.

This follows to the radios. Our esteemed guru Ross Gammidge 
was often seen pulling out what hair is left on his head at the state 
some of you left the radios. Fair shake of the sauce bottle guys, don’t 
put wet radios on the their chargers, or radios full of sand on the 
chargers. They may well be put under lock & key next year.  We are 
a volunteer club; it’s hard to come by gear; can we please look after 
what we have. Thank you to Ross for looking after all the radios.  
We will have a big new marine radio ready for the IRB’s for next 
season…. Stay tuned.

Thanks to you all for making sure you are proficient & financial.  If 
you want to continue to volunteer as a patrol member; it’s up to you 
to make sure you are proficient. The chief instructor is always willing 
to assist/discuss this with you.

My congratulations to the following members recognised for 
their outstanding contributions:-

100% Patrol Attendance

Mitch Beaumont, Kate Berry, Jack-Henry Bryant, Rowena Clarke, 

Vivienne Cresswell, Ben Davies, Peter Firminger, Denise Gammie, 

Steve Haggett, Warren Hannam, Peter Hatfield, Anne Henshaw, 

Adam Hockley, Rae-Maree Hutton, Anthony Kirillov, Torsten 

Lachmann, Allen Lakeman, Hugh Long,  Jason MacBride, Vern 

Mitchell, Matthew Molinia, Gloria Nassif,  Simon Navin, Michael 

Polley, Steven Polley, Gregory Punch, Sandy Rastogi, Ivor Rees, Sarah 

Rees, Justin Sharkey, Peter Sharkey, Allan Skinner, Rob Stephens, 

Reid Tucker, Ron Tyson, Herve Vichemont, Timothy Wainwright, 

Cindy Waldock,  Mark Williams, Catherine Wyllie, Gary Yabsley, 

Adrian York
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Top 10 Female & Male Patrollers
Thank you for your outstanding service

Leading Female Patrol Members

 	 Name	 Hours

1.	 Caroline Guernier	 146.5

2.	 Adrienne Lowe 	 66.0

3.	 Anne Henshaw 	 62.8

4.	 Rowena Clarke 	 59.8

5.	 Amite Skinner 	 58.0

6.	 Kate Berry 	 55.0

7.	 Catherine Wyllie 	 54.0

8.	 Rae-Maree Hutton 	 52.8

9.	 Cara Jacobs 	 52.5

10.	 Sarah Rees 	 52.5

			 
	

Leading Male Patrol Members

 	 Name	 Hours

1.	 Steven Polley 	 387.5

2.	 Peter Firminger 	 300.5

3.	 Jack-Henry Bryant 	 200.3

4.	 Michael Polley 	 198.0

5.	 Adam Hockley 	 192.3

6.	 Timothy Wainwright 	 182.3

7.	 Allan Skinner 	 167.0

8.	 Philippe Santoni 	 140.5

9.	 Hugh Long 	 123.3

10	 Matthew Brody	 110.0

		

I would like to give a special mention to Connor Tyson who patrolled 
109 hours on the beach this season.  A wonderful achievement for 
one of our SRC members.  

Some of the above members have many hours included at the radio 
room of Surfcom.

I can’t thank enough the Club Captains team comprising the ageless 
Peter Firminger, Steve Richards, and Darren Armitage.  These guys 
were my eyes on the beach when I couldn’t be there, they attended 
meetings with me and made sure that our patrols were covered.  
They were my eyes & ears and sounding board.

There was a small bunch of patrolling members I could contact who 
were always willing & able to help when patrols were light on of certain 
awards. My personal thanks coming your way; your assistance was 
extremely appreciated.

Thank you to the committee for your continued support; and thanks 
Simon for being able to unearth the most amazing grants; many 
which we were awarded with the highlight being the ATV which will 
be in operation from season 2013.

I send my thanks to the Warringah Lifeguards who we worked well 
together with this season; with a bunch of new faces there.

I’d also like to thank the gang from Orange who managed to put in 
a good number of hours on patrol; the SRC girls and of course now 
Colin, John and Amber having attained their bronze.  I look forward 
to many more years of friendship and seeing you visit for patrols.

My thanks go to the training team, we had a huge amount of SRC & 
Bronzies come through; together with new drivers & crew.  Thanks 
to Allan Skinner for maintaining the IRB’s and making sure we have 
many more drivers & crew.

My personal guru Sue Cheney who can crunch a report out of 
anything, who is a tireless worker around the club finishing up with 
being our chief boss lady in sorting out the presentation night; I 
sincerely thank you !!

Thank you Ivor & Mary always there to cook up a storm on the BBQ.  
Big shout out again to Matt Molinia for preparing another mouth-
watering feast at the end of the season.  Simply sensational.

Most of all, thank you patrolling members, all of you, for giving up 
your time to help at the club, whether it be patrolling, education or 
events or simply whenever you could do something.   Keep on driving 
each other nuts!

Take care of yourselves, see you on the beach.
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IRB REPORT 
by Allan Skinner

Well how quick did this season go? We started the season with the 
four IRBs; we sold one to a club member and purchased a Soft Hull 
as a replacement. We also purchased a new Fuel Cabinet for Safe 
storage of our fuel containers, with another to follow in the off season 
to safely store the Bladders; this will keep us compliant with Work 
Cover OH&S. Please make sure you are aware of the guidelines 
which are easily visible on the board.

I have been trying to keep a tight hold on the maintenance to reduce 
the pressure on the team as we start the next season. I am confident 
that next season we will get 100% at gear inspection. Thank you to 
those that have given their time to help with the maintenance during 
the season. Also next season I will also be looking at purchasing 
an IRB to replace the Nipper IRB as it is getting old and the cost of 
keeping it operational will soon exceed its value. We have a register 
of members’ names that wish to purchase an IRB or a Motor, so any 
member that wishes to do so please contact me and I will put you 
on the list. 

We will be taking delivery of a ATV (All Terrain Vehicle) for next 
season, how good this will be allowing us to be independent to carry 
our own equipment to and from the beach, no more pushing the IRB 
up and down the beach. 

It’s important to recognise and thank all those that drove and crewed 
an IRB for last season, with several rescues performed and with no 
loss of life.  This truly validates that the IRB is one of the most vital 
pieces of equipment that we Surf Lifesaver’s have to call upon to 
successfully conduct a rescue in large seas. The IRB Department 
is constantly striving to make the activity of driving and crewing as 
safe and pleasurable as possible for our members. I do still attend all 
IRB Branch and State meetings and always put your concerns and 
queries forward as the IRB Captain and representative of the Dee 
Why Surf Club Drivers and Crew. Ultimately we are still governed 
by those policies and must abide by them. New or amended policies 
that are developed over the winter months will be presented to all 
Patrol Captains and IRB drivers and crew during proficiencies.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all those that helped 
this season, not only Volunteering on our beach but volunteering to 
assist in other clubs Patrols and helping with water safety for their 
events.  Our club receives points allocated to us by branch, which 
helps towards our club awards, so well done guys.

This season just passed, we were not so busy due to the weather but 
with over 400,000 people visiting our beach; we managed to have a 
driver and crew person on every patrol, some patrols have the luxury 
of more than one for each patrol.  Thanks particularly to all patrolling 
members – in giving up your valuable time.  You have made it one 
of the safest beaches in Australia to visit. You should be proud of the 
colossal efforts that each and every one of you put into ensuring that 
all our visitors on our Dee Why beach went home safely. 

Maintaining the IRB equipment is expensive and I appreciate the 
care that is taken to preserve our valuable equipment. Some points 
to remember: Over-inflation can create just as much harm as under-
inflation does pushing the unit unnecessarily harshly through large 
surf. It is recognised that to keep up your skillset it is necessary to 
practice in challenging conditions but there is a delicate balance 
between safe vs reckless or dangerous activities for yourself and the 
public. Please remember the IRB is a highly visible and recognisable 
profile of our club with many eyes watching from the beach. It was 
good to see this year drivers practising in the surf, not just taking the 
IRB for joy rides.  Also just one more reminder of the importance of 
keeping a check on the bladder and burping it every 15-20 minutes 
depending on the severity of the sun; as it is fully exposed until the 

splash panel can offer it some protection.

Training: always the most challenging activity for the IRBs, but also 
the most essential and rewarding.  Without new members joining the 
team of the IRB Driver and Crew we cannot continue to grow. My 
goal is the same as last year this coming season to encourage as 
many candidates to further their SLS training and to give the IRBs a 
try. To all new drivers and crew I would like to congratulate you and 
extend my gratitude to all IRB team members and look forward to 
seeing you back in action again next season.

Congratulations go to all those that underwent their Crew or Drivers 
this season, with over 18 Crew and 4 Drivers that I personally put 
through their awards.  Whilst on that subject I would like to thank Ron 
Tyson and Tim Wainwright for assisting on those courses.  Tim And 
Ron will be doing their IRB Trainers award next season so get behind 
our guys as the more trainers we have the more flexible we can be 
to accommodate our members busy time schedules. I was proud to 
put through a high contingent of our younger patrolling members this 
season who are really taking the IRBs to another level.  It’s so good 
to see them out in the surf being so responsible; its great to have 
members like that, as they one day will be running our club.

A special thanks goes to Herve Vichemont for being the Vice IRB 
Captain, great job Herve. I know you work odd hours, but every time 
I needed your help you stood up to the plate and got it done.

Finally, thank you to all those that in large or small ways have 
contributed to the success of the IRB this season, your dedication 
and diligence is highly valued and I look forward to working alongside 
you again.

See you on the Beach for another great season.
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AWARDS – EDUCATION

SRC	
Ben Beatty
Emily Bulic
Ella Clarke
Joshua Haithwaite
Courtney Heaven
Emily Hockley
Taylor Ly
Zara McTaggart
Noah Pearson
Jaslyn Rouse
Tilly Scott
Ella-Jane Sharpe
Connor Tyson
Sam Van Vliet
Liam Webster
	
Bronze Medallion	
Cassandra Armenio
John Asquith
Iain Ayres
Melanie Bulic
John Bushnell
Taylah Campbell
Stephanie Chiha
Judy Collins
Amber Collins
John Collins
Penny Connah
Andrew Crawford
Benjamin Cunneen
Emma Cunneen
William Dawes
Jordan Diaz
Jack Fender
Riaan Foot
Stefan Freeman
Chelsea Haggett
Matthew Hill
Adam Hockley
Mark Hodges
Zaven Jordan
Alice Kjoller
Colin Kjoller
Andy Layton
Harrison Marshall
Daniel Martin
Kerry Morris
Jarrod O`Flaherty
Emma Page
Anthony Peake
Michael Polley
Stephen Rashleigh
Daniel Rashleigh
Malin Sjoestroem
Amite Skinner
Luke Smith
Joshua Smith
Charlie Soden
Robert Swadling
Kara Talty
Graham Whitehead
Chris Wilson
Carolyn Wiseman

Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques Certificate	
Jayde Booth
James Booth
Nicholas Booth
Jack-Henry Bryant

Grace Bryant
Ryan Darnley
Taylah Davies
Adam Hockley
Zaven Jordan
Sebastian Kadziela
Steve Richards
Ryan Tucker
Vaughn Williams
	
Training Officer – ARTC	
Steve Haggett
	
Training Officer –
 Bronze Medaillion	
Vaughn Williams

IRB Crew
John Asquith
Iain Ayres
Nathan Booth
Tayla Campbell
Benjamin Cunneen
Emma Cunneen
Caroline Guernier
Adam Hockley
Zaven Jordan
Hugh Long
Jarrod O`Flaherty
Michael Polley
Karl Roberts
Anthony Sharpe
Malin Sjoestroem
Amite Skinner
Jayne Temple
Connor Wyllie

Silver Medallion – IRB Driver	
Jack-Henry Bryant
Steven Polley
Steve Richards
Jon Thomson
	
Assessor – IRB	
Darren Armitage
David Spink

Apply First Aid	
Rob Cheney
Sue Cheney
April East
Vivienne Cresswell
Blake Field
Hugh Long
Kate Massey
Justin Sharkey
Rob Stephens
	
Surf Sports Junior Official	
Ray Martin
	
Surf Coach	
Vaughn Williams
Judy Collins
Darren Armitage

5 Year Coaching 
Service Award	
Cam Wylllie

10 Year Coaching 
Service Award	
Stephen Scott
	
15 Year Assessing 
Service Award	
Simon Moriarty
Gregory Punch

5 Year Officiating 
Service Award	
Allen Lakeman
Adrienne Lowe
	
5 Year National 
Patrol Service Award	
Julie Chivers
Ray Clarke
Liam French
Warren Hannam
Roger Jacobs
Anthony Kirillov
Simon Navin
David Spink
Ron Tyson

10 Year National 
Patrol Service Award	
Kate Berry
	
15 Year National 
Patrol Service Award	
Philippe Santoni
	
20 Year National 
Patrol Service Award	
Steve Haggett

Bruce Richardson Medal	
Graham Whitehead
	
IRB Crewperson of Year	
Amite Skinner
	
IRB Driver of the Year	
Steven Polley

SRC Patrol Person of the Year	
Connor Tyson
	
Junior Patrol 
Person of the Year	
Adam Hockley & 
Jack-Henry Bryant
	
Senior Patrol Person 
of the Year	
Tim Wainwright

Ray Martin 
Patrol Captain of the Year	
Ben Davies

Patrol of the Year
Patrol 9:
Mark Williams
Tony Kirrilov
Jason Everett
Sebastian Kadziela
Hugh Long
Debbie McAllister

100% Patrol Attendance	
Mitch Beaumont
Kate Berry
Jack-Henry Bryant
Rowena Clarke
Vivienne Cresswell
Ben Davies
Peter Firminger
Denise Gammie
Steve Haggett
Warren Hannam
Peter Hatfield
Anne Henshaw
Adam Hockley
Rae-Maree Hutton
Anthony Kirillov
Torsten Lachmann
Allen Lakeman
Hugh Long
Jason MacBride
Vern Mitchell
Matthew Molinia
Gloria Nassif
Simon Navin
Michael Polley
Steven Polley
Gregory Punch
Sandy Rastogi
Ivor Rees
Sarah Rees
Justin Sharkey
Peter Sharkey
Allan Skinner
Rob Stephens
Reid Tucker
Ron Tyson
Herve Vichemont
Timothy Wainwright
Cindy Waldock
Graham Whitehead
Mark Williams
Catherine Wyllie
Gary Yabsley
Adrian York
	
Patrol Appreciation
New Awardees most of whom 
were not rostered hours but
did in excess of 25 hours 
since gaining their bronze	
Emily Bulic
Amber Collins
Molly Collins
Judy Collins
Emily Hockley
Alice Kjoller
Kerry Morris
Jarrod O`Flaherty
Malin Sjoestroem
Amite Skinner
Charlie Soden
Connor Tyson
Sam Van Vliet
Liam Webster
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CHIEF INSTRUCTOR’S REPORT 
by Vaughn Williams

A challenging yet rewarding training season was achieved at Dee 
Why during the 2012/13 season. A total of 113 awards were obtained 
by a high standard of candidate’s being presented. The high 
standards are testament to the quality of training and facilitation of 
all involved at the club, be it the endorsed trainers or competency 
experts that partook in the delivery of training.

 

Proficiencies and Trainers

Excellent responses early on from all trainers and assessors in the 
season made for an easy structure for all proficiencies and training 
to be established. Thanks to all the endorsed trainers and assessors 
that assisted in getting members proficient for the upcoming season 
and delivering courses to new candidates.

Trainers, assessors and competency experts for the season 2012-
13, Steve Haggett, Adrienne Lowe, Vaughn Williams, Greg Punch, 
Rob Stephens, Vivienne Cresswell, Bruce Richardson, Matt Molinia, 
Dave Spink, Darren Armitage, Allan Skinner, Hugh Long, Warren 
Hannam and Allan Lakeman.

The Club and I appreciate all the time and effort that is put in to 
making the progression of new skills an easy transition process for 
new and existing candidates undertaking training. We do this as 
a matter of choice to pass on our skills and knowledge to others, 
which allows the club to have continual growth and keep moving 
forward. Training and assessing is vital for survival of any volunteer 
organisation and I thank you all, encouraging another active year for 
the new season with great teamwork moving forward
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SURF SPORTS REPORT 
by Phil Thomas

In our Centenary Season, the competition arena was well represented 
by the Blue & White Cap of Dee Why, with numerous outstanding 
results. Congratulations to everyone who competed and proudly 
represented the club at all levels of competition.

Events covered this season include the Coolangatta Gold, Oceans 
Ski Series, NSW Endurance Championships, various Branch 
Carnivals (Boats, Beach, Opens/U15/U17/U19’s, Masters, Surfing 
and Life Saving), Sydney Northern Beaches Branch Championships 
at Dee Why, NSW Championships at Umina/Ocean Beach and the 
Australian Championships at North Kirra Gold Coast.  Dee Why SLSC 
competed in 31 events and hosting the Branch Championships at our 
own beach provided a fantastic opportunity for a large contingent to 
compete – 30 competitors in Surf Board Riding, 13 in Opens/U15/
U17/U19’s, 18 in Life Saving events, 19 in Masters and 10 in Surf 
Boats.

I’d also like to single out the efforts of the IRB drivers and crew who 
assisted at the NSW Championships providing the required water 
safety to allow the team to compete in the various events.  This is a 
major consideration for next season as the team numbers grow and 
at both NSW & Australian Championships, it is envisaged that our 
club will be required to provide IRB drivers and crew as part of our 
event entry conditions.

Competitors make numerous commitments throughout the season 
which include personal training, team training and helping others 
develop their skills throughout the season and for future events.  Not 
to forget their commitments to surf life saving patrols, a mandatory 
requirement to be a representative and competitor, along with the 
many hours spent alongside of the rest of the members in the various 
fundraising efforts throughout the whole year. A brilliant year from a 
very dedicated group.  

Many thanks to the section heads and other supporters of the 
competition group – Marty Quinn, Steve Scott, Peter Hatfield, Grant 
Marshall, Steve Haggett, Matt Molinia, Simon Moriarty and Bec 
Marshall (accommodation negotiator); and of course to those who 
lent a hand along the way in assisting the team to their every success.
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BEACH REPORT

Over the last couple of years, Dee Why has attempted to renew it’s presence in the beach events. This year, being our Centenary year, with the 
Branch Championships being held on our home turf presented a great opportunity. 

An outstanding competitor and Australian Gold Medalist from Last year, Emma Jeffcoat backed up again this year to take out the U19s womens 
2km beach run at the Australian and World Championships. 

At the branch Championships Jamie Listberger, with no training and just raw ability, took out the open men’s 2km beach run convincingly.  Harry 
Marshall, seizing an opportunity, grabbed himself a Silver medal in the 2km beach run at the Branch Championships.

A masters’ beach team was put together consisting of a group where many had never seen a carnival before. Jude Collins, Darren Armitage, Dave 
Spink, Vern Mitchell, Alex Wyer and Matthew Molinia were the basis of the team who trained and competed at every opportunity. As Masters’, 
there were issues with injury, but with assistance from Marty Quinn, Pete Sharkey and Cam Wyllie we were still able to compete in the team relays.  
Building up to the Branch Championships the team competed at the Freshwater and East Coast Masters gaining experience along the way. At the 
branch championships the team fared well in the beach relay even with our star and most experienced runner, Alex Wyer, injuring himself in the 
individual sprint. Cam Wyllie, a very strong water competitor and out of his comfort zone, stepped in with a shoulder injury and assisted the team 
to a Bronze medal. Several other branch results were achieved as follows.

Event Place Name

40-44 Flags 1st Vern Mitchell

40-44 Beach Sprint 1st Vern Mitchell

Opens 2km beach run 1st Jamie Listberger

40-44 Flags 2nd Matt Molinia

U15 2km beach run 2nd Harry Marshall

40-44 Beach Sprint 3rd Matt Molinia

40-44 2km beach run 3rd Matt Molinia

170+ Beach Relay 3rd Darren Armitage/Matt Molinia/Vern Mitchell/Cam Wyllie

U17 Flags 5th Adam Hockley

40-44 Flags 5th Jude Collins

40-44 Beach Sprint 6th Jude Collins

45-49 Beach Sprint 6th Darren Armitage

Hopefully these results will encourage more competitors to represent Dee Why in the future years to come.



. . .

28

competition

AWARDS – COMPETITION
by Allan Skinner

Activity	 Award	 Recipient

Competition	 Open Male - 1st Place	 Justin Sharkey
	 Open Male - 2nd Place	 Adam Hockley
	 Open Male - 3rd Place	 Ryan Tucker
	 Open Women - 1st Place	 Emma Jeffcoat
	 Open Women - 2nd Place	 Madison Quinn
	 Open Masters - 1st Place	 Grant Marshall
	 Open Masters - 2nd Place	 Peter Sharkey
	 Open Masters - 3rd Place	 Peter Hatfield

Medal Winners - 
State Championships
	 Open First Aid - 3rd Place	 Allen Lakeman and Adrienne Lowe
	 Open Longboard - 1st Place	 Grant Marshall
	 49 - 49 Yr Longboard - 2nd Place	 Grant Marshall

Medal Winners – 
State Championships 
and Australian 
Championships
	 Over 50 Yr Shortboard - 1st Place	 Geoff Horner
	 Over 50 Yr Longboard - 1st Place	 Geoff Horner
	 Over 50 Yr Men’s Longboard - 2nd Place	 Geoff Horner
	 Open Women’s Longboard - 1st Place	 Madison Quinn
	 Open Women’s Short Board - 3rd Place	 Madison Quinn
	 Open Women’s Longboard - 2nd Place	 Madison Quinn
	 Open Women’s Short board - 3rd Place	 Madison Quinn
	 Open Men’s Short Board - 3rd Place	 Alex Lakeman
	 U19 2K Beach Run - 1st Place	 Emma Jeffcoat
	 Over 40 Yr Men’s Longboard - 3rd Place	 Warren Hannam

Medal Winners - 
World Championships
	 50 - 54 Yr Ironman - 3rd Place	 Cam Wyllie
	 30 - 34 Yr Ironman - 3rd Place	 Andrew Byatt
	 U19 2 K Beach Run - 1st Place	 Emma Jeffcoat
	
	 Coaches Encouragement Award	 Adam Hockley 
		  Jack-Henry Bryant 
		  Paige Wiseman
	
	 Most Outstanding Female Rower	 Aleisha Pollicina
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BOARD & SKI REPORT 
by Peter Hatfield

Being our Centenary year, this season was always going to be one 
where every competitor gave 100% to get Dee Why in the record 
books.

Training for our team started in early September, and we trained 
almost every day. Three board sessions and three ski sessions 
weekly, with Saturday morning change overs and Sunday morning 
events always well attended .The competition between Masters 
and Open competitors always brings a healthy atmosphere to any 
session, friendly rivalry and the odd verbal dig, ensure the competitive 
spirit is kept alive .

Our Masters Competition team this year was Marty Quinn, Warren 
Hannam, Ben Davies, Wayne Weisse, Peter Sharkey, Geoff Crittle, 
Grant Marshall, Peter Hatfield, Cam Wyllie, and Chris Morgan.

Our Open Team consisted of Alex Lakeman, Justin Sharkey, Jack-
Henry Bryant, Adam Hockley, Harry Marshall, Sean Wyllie, Daniel 
Rashliegh, Madison Quinn, Emma Jeffcoat and Paige Wiesmann.

Local carnivals, East Coast Masters, Freshwater Masters, Manly 
were well attended and were mostly warm ups for Branch, State and 
the Australian Titles later in the year.

Branch Titles
Hosted by our club for our Centenary, the pressure was on the host 
club to get a few medals on the water. Masters opened up our medal 
account with Gold in the 150 years ski relay Hatfield/Quinn/Wyllie. 
Silver  in the 130 years Swim teams Marshall/ Wyllie/ Morgan. Cam 
Wyllie medalled in almost every event he entered, and I picked up 
my first individual Gold winning the 50-54 single ski, a medal I am 
very proud of.

Our Open competitors were up the following week. Dee Why 
turned on a perfect day for the carnival .Our team performed above 
expectations, Emma Jeffcoat showing the way medalling in the swim, 
Board, Iron Woman, Single Ski, and Open Double Ski with Madison 
Quinn. The mixed double ski saw three Dee Why crews take part, in 
the final, a first for our club.

This was our best Branch for many years with more tales of winning, 

than hard luck, it was great to see hard work and luck coming our 
way at our home beach.

Australian Titles
Held at North Kirra beach Queensland, 24 competitors headed north 
to represent our club in the Masters and Open carnivals.

Competition at Aussies is tough and smaller clubs like ours vanish 
behind the giant tents and dozens of competitors from the larger 
Queensland clubs.

Dee Why rarely gets a mention except for when Punchy is on the 
mic. So it was surprising to hear the chatter of the crowd, when 
Emma Jeffcoat won the 2km soft sand run, leaving Jordan Mercer 16 
seconds behind . “Where is Dee Why?” was heard coming of the lips 
of the defeated iron woman (I think she knows now).The giant killing 
continued throughout the week. Madi Quinn and Emma made our 
first Open women’s double ski final finishing a credible 7th, Emma 
made the u 19 single ski, Swim and Iron woman finals.

Between some events Madi and Emma would cycle back to 
Coolangatta to compete in the Board riding. I don’t think too many 
Sunday finalists followed this program.

Alex, Justin, Jack and Adam took it to the carnival in Board, ski and 
swim; the experience gained this year will no doubt make better 
competitors of them all.

Thank you  to our board coach Scott Mortimer whose knowledge 
developed our team this year, Marty Quinn who assists board 
coaching and organises Saturday changeovers, Simon for being 
our official starter of Sunday morning events, and the Deck Bar for 
sponsoring the Touring team uniforms.
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SURFBOARD RIDING REPORT 
by Grant Marshall

Firstly I would like congratulate all of the Dee Why competitors on 
an excellent year. It has been a number of years since Dee Why 
has been competing on Sundays at Championships from Nippers 
through to masters.

The Surfing teams first carnival , this year was the Branch titles at 
our home beach. Our team came away with a Medal tally of 8 gold, 
8 Sliver & 4 Bronze twice the medal tally of any other club in the 
Surfboard riding.

A special mention to the U/13 Girls Courtney 2nd, Emily 3rd & 
Ashleigh 4th competing in the surfing for the first time.

Next up was the State Titles at Umina, with Madi Quinn & myself 
taking out the Open long board riding in both Male & Female 
divisions. The ever consistent Geoff Horner taking the Gold medals 
for the 50 years plus divisions for Short & Long board riding. Madi 
adding a Bronze to her tally in the Open Female Short Board Riding. 
Alex Lakeman made his surfboard riding début for the surf club with 
a 4th place in the Open short board riding. I also collected Silver for 
the over 40’s Long board riding.

Then to the main event the Australian Title at Kirra Beach. The 
team was blessed with best conditions we have ever had for the 
Australian titles surfing at Greenmount Point. Alex Lakeman put in 
an awsome performance , taking the Bronze in the Open Short board 
riding in a field including ex world tour surfers. Madi then added to 

her Australian medal collection now edging above 12, with a Silver 
medal in the Open Female Long Board riding & a Bronze in the Open 
Female Short Board Riding. As did Geoff Horner with a Silver in the 
50 years plus Long Board riding.

Warren Hannam excelled to come to his first Australian titles & come 
away with a Bronze in the 40/49 years Long Board Riding.

I would like to thank Steve from the DECK 23 for his support to the 
touring team & our awsome team uniforms.

Again Congratulations to all the team members 

. . .
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Branch Titles Dee Why Beach 27/1/2013
U/13 Female Short Board Riding
2nd 	 Courtney Campbell
3rd 	 Emily Hockley
4th 	 Ashleigh Portelli

U/15 Male Short Board Riding
4th 	 Daniel Rashleigh

U/17 Male Short Board Riding
3rd 	 Adam Hockley

Open Male Short Board Riding
2nd 	 Ben Yabsley
4th 	 Warren Hannam
5th 	 Geoff Horner
6th 	 Peter Sharkey
	
Open Female Short Board Riding
1st 	 Madison Quinn

Open Male Long Board Riding
2nd 	 Grant Marshall
3rd 	 Geoff Horner
4th 	 Warren Hannam
5th 	 Ben Yabsley
6th 	 Peter Sharkey

Open Female Long Board Riding 
1st 	 Madison Quinn
4th 	 Vivienne Cresswell

30/39 Years Male Short Board Riding
1st 	 Vaughn Williams

30/39 Years Male Long Board Riding
1st 	 Vaughn Williams

40/49 Years Male Short Board Riding
1st 	 Grant Marshall
3rd 	 Warren Hannam

40/49 Years Male Long Board Riding
2nd 	 Warren Hannam 
3rd 	 Grant Marshall

50/59 Years Male Short Board Riding
1st 	 Peter Sharkey
2nd 	 Geoff Horner
4th 	 Cam Wyllie

50/59 Years Male Long Board Riding
1st 	 Peter Sharkey
2nd 	 Geoff Horner
4th 	 Cam Wyllie
6th 	 Michael Crawford

50/59 Years Female Long Board Riding
1st 	 Vivienne Cresswell
2nd 	 Nanette Crawford

State Titles Umina March 2013 
Open Female Long Board Riding
1st 	 Madison Quinn

Open Female Short Board Riding
3rd 	 Madison Quinn

Open Male Short Board Riding
4th 	 Alex Lakeman

Open Male Long Board Riding
1st 	 Grant Marshall

40/49 Years Long Board Riding
2nd 	 Grant Marshall

50/59 Years Short Board Riding 
1st 	 Geoff Horner

50/59 Years Long Board Riding
1st 	 Geoff Horner
4th  	 Cam Wyllie

Australian Titles Kirra Beach April 2013
Open Male Short Board Riding
3rd 	 Alex Lakeman

Open Female Short Board Riding
3rd 	 Madison Quinn

Open Female Long Board Riding
2nd 	 Madison Quinn

40/49 Years Male Long Board Riding
3rd 	 Warren Hannam

50/59 Years Male Long Board Riding
2nd 	 Geoff Horner

BOARD RIDING TEAM RESULTSby Peter Hatfield
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This year saw a downsizing of our boat section and a preparation of 
new things to come.

After such an outstanding season last year it was always going to be 
a re build considering the DINGO’S all travelled overseas to explore 
and work and are only now coming back into the country. They were 
our leading senior crew although only in their third year of rowing and 
left a big hole to fill.

Crews
Our Open Ladies crew the WHY KNOT’S and it looked unlikely that 
we would have an open Ladies crew as well. But as often happens as 
the season rolled around again Aleasha and Carla decided a weight 
loss program was needed and told me they were keen to row again.

Tom Wilson and the LEMON PARTY were super keen after their 3rd 
placing at the Nationals to move up into the 23’s age bracket and 
Tom was also keen to put together a first year U19 crew which he 
did. I will leave Tom’s crews for him to report on and I will report on 
my only crew the DY Open Ladies crew.

Joining the Aleisha and Carla also from the Central Coast was 
Laini Collyer and Kelly Graham. The girls had all rowed together at 
MacMasters SLSC in 2010 and the were a very good crew. They 
are a great bunch of girls and all good friends which makes for a 
very enjoyable season. As a coach it was a matter of getting them 
confident in all conditions and getting them fit enough to row fast 
every race. I think we achieved this.

 

The girls had 2 major focuses for the season, the first being Ocean 
Thunder and the second being the SLSaving racing calendar. The 
girls raced very competitively in all rounds of the series and although 
finishing a disappointing 6th out of 15 crews overall it was not a true 
reflection of just how well they rowed. In round 1 we were leading the 
final in the first leg and rolled the boat on a wave returning to shore. 
To the girls credit we did right the boat and complete the second leg 
but finished last. In the second round we won the qualifying point 
score and were leading the final in the final leg only to have 2 crews 
come through from the other end and pip us into 3rd. In the 3rd round 
I was out through injury and Mike Norman from MacMaster’s and 
their old sweep filled in for me. The girls raced very competitively 
and narrowly missed out on the final. And to complete our unlucky 
campaign the final round was eventually cancelled due to huge seas 
with us on the line waiting for the gun to go after winning out first 
race. This is the first time an OT event has been cancelled and it 

BOAT REPORT 
by Steve Scott

was a credit to the girls that they handled the conditions as well as 
any crew on the day and were confident to continue racing. Had we 
continued to race we would of finished at least in 4th place overall.

In the regular calendar season the girls made most finals placing 
in many and winning both North Narrabeen and Warriwood. In the 
Branch they placed 4th in the State we had an early exit with Bilgola 
after we both led the race only to lose the decision after boats caught 
a wave from behind and in the Australian after winning or getting 
seconds through to the last 16 crews in Australia we messed up 
a difficult start and our season was over. So although our trophy 
cabinet was not filled with medals I want to say how proud I am of the 
girls on how they applied themselves to training. Each week the girls 
drove down from the Central Coast up to 4 times a week and never 
had a bad training session. They were delightful to train and coach 
because of their attitude and definitely deserved what success they 
achieved. Beside this they were a much liked and respected crew 
by their peers and I frequently was complimented by other clubs on 
what a great bunch of girls they were both as rowers and people. 

My personal thanks girls for one of my most enjoyable seasons. Lots 
and lots of laughs and you did go fast. Well done. 

My Most Outstanding Female Club Rower goes this year to the Stroke 
Aleisha. Aleisha’s commitment and determination was impressive. 
She I believe has developed into one of the top female strokes in 
Australia and was instrumental in the speed we achieved particularly 
on the way home from the buoys. Aleisha led not only in the boat but 
also by her drive and leadership at training on the rowing machines. 
Congratulations Aleisha you’re a champ! The other girls were also 
outstanding but I had no doubt in awarding this year’s award.       

Colts
It was always going to be a tough year for the Lemon party to 
better their achievement of an Aussie bronze medal from last year, 
especially going up into the very competitive colts division. Yannick, 
Willis and Jono were all backing up again and Harrison Selby had 
joined the crew to replace Max who had left for Collaroy to continue 
rowing juniors. Harrison picked up rowing relatively quickly and after 
a fair bit of experimentation with seats we eventually decided to 
place him in the 2nd stroke seat to balance out the power of our 
big German unit in the stroke seat. The first half of the season went 
relatively smoothly with the crew training well and putting in some 
competitive rows at several carnivals.

The pre-christmas training session and refreshments was always 
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going to be a spectacle after Jono had suggested we all bring a fancy 
dress costume for a team mate. So in mid December on a Saturday 
afternoon after the ocean thunder at the beach with many people 
on the balcony of the surf club a nurse, caped time traveller, fairy 
godmother, Mrs Claus and someone dressed in a wig and garbage 
bag all went out to catch a few waves. We got a few funny looks but 
managed to keep the boat upright and enjoyed a pleasant celebration 
afterwards.

Unfortunately things went downhill from there. After returning from 
our christmas break Willis fell crook with glangular fever having to 
miss a few weeks training and a couple of carnivals. Big Vaughn 
filled in for a while and had a row with us at the Manly carnival and 
I (Tom) jumped in the bow while Aaron Moon made a return to the 
club to sweep us at the Freshwater carnival. Yannick then had to 
deal with gout for a week or so experiencing significant discomfort at 
training sessions but seemed more annoyed that an older member 
of the team who probably drinks a little bit more wasn’t experiencing 
the gout himself. Jono too then was laid up with a virus for several 
weeks and after not being able to row at branch or state the season 
was called for the lemon party. A disappointing end to the season 
but hopefully we will see all of the boys back next year for a much 
healthier season.

A big thanks goes out to Aaron Moon and Vaughn Williams for helping 
out during the season and Willis’s mum (Catfish) for supplying the 
crew their 2012/2013 attire.

Juniors
Daniel Martin, Andy Layton, Charlie Soden and John Bushnell were 
the new recruits to the boat section this year. It was an introductory 
season for them with it being the first experience for all of them in a 
surf boat in October. They were all only 16 years old competing in the 
Under 19’s division so our expectations weren’t high for the results 
considering their minimal experience also. They must have set some 
sort of record for their bronze though by successfully gaining their 
bronze within 2 weeks of starting training for it. Again a big thanks 
goes out to Vaughn and his intensive 2 week program that put the 
boys in a great position on assessment day. Vaughn’s legendary 
effort as a trainer and mentor influenced the boys into settling on 
their crew name as the “doggers”.

Branch was their first carnival and they had set themselves a goal 
to try to beat at least one crew throughout the day. Well the boys 
achieved their goal in the first race beating 3 crews when a small 
wave helped them into 3rd place! The boys went on to row at the 
state and put in a very pleasing performance and although they 
didn’t make it through the round robin the gap between them and the 
leaders wasn’t too big considering their age and experience.

Although at times the doggers may have appeared more like a WWF 
wrestling tag team than a crew of rowers, they have shown positive 
signs of being a successful crew in years to come.

Sponsorship
Our sincere thanks continue to go to TASTE LIVING who are in 
their second year of their boat sponsorship. Our three boats are all 
branded with TASTE and they make a great impact on the beach. We 
are dependant on sponsors to fund these very expensive craft and 
we need good boats to compete at the top level in Ocean Thunder 
where we got good National TV coverage and other branch state and 

national carnivals. Thankyou Charbel Joe and Richard  from TASTE 
for your ongoing support.

A big thankyou to Leon and Kylie Pendergast who own and market 
the fashion brand Ooh la la who sponsored the open girls crew with 
5 oars and a sweep oar all of which came through the full season 
undamaged. Thanks Leon and Kylie for your generous sponsorship 
and the pink oars branded with Ooh la la looked great and the girls 
“pinked” it up with their rowing gear.

Finally I would like to thank the Management Committee and all 
those club members who supported our crews this season. We 
are well equipped and are well placed to attract sponsors because 
of the direction the club is moving. This is my last season as boat 
captain, Tom Wilson is to take over from next season. Tom is part of 
the new era in surfboats at the club and I have no doubt he will do 
an outstanding job.

In my leaving I would like to thank all the members and the 
management committees I have sat on for their support of me and 
the boat section of the club.
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This season proved to be a very busy and challenging season 
being the clubs centenary year and with Dee Why being the host 
club for the branch championships. Weather and conditions proved 
somewhat unfavourable but our nippers and their parents stepped up 
and participated and helped out where required.

 

          

Once again this season all of our U14 nippers took the first step 
into the senior club by successfully completing their Surf Rescue 
Certificate (SRC). This was held over the October long weekend 
when the water was cold and the conditions challenging. We had 
candidates that had been nippers since U6s and new members 
that had just joined the club. They all worked together and helped 
each other through and followed on as patrolling members for the 
season fulfilling their rostered patrol duties along with water safety 
commitments.

 

Although a somewhat smaller group than last season 2 candidates 
were chosen to represent Dee Why in the Junior Lifesaver of the 
year. Taylor Ly, a long standing and committed member and 
competitor represented the girls and one of our new members Sam 
Van Vleit represented the Boys. Competition is always intense but 
our selected candidates represented Dee Why well.

It was a very difficult season weather and conditions wise and this 
was shown dramatically by the fact that despite our best efforts we 
were required to stop the first carnival of the season at Dee Why, 
the Bennett Craft Carnival after only 6 races due to unfavourable 
conditions. It also made it very difficult for our U9s at the start of the 

season as conditions and very cold water temperatures prevented 
many from completing their open water swim and therefore were 
unable to participate in the Manly JAC carnival in November. This in 
no way dampened their spirits and before the Queenscliff carnival in 
December they took every opportunity available and got themselves 
back to full strength and proficient for carnivals.

This season the Dee Why Nippers took a proactive approach ahead 
of requirements and made it mandatory for all nippers to wear a 
fluorescent pink rash vest to all nipper activities including Sunday 
morning events, training sessions and carnivals. The forethought 
of the senior and junior committees enabled a sponsor “Dee Why 
Grand” to be secured who generously supported the club and 
enabled the fluorescent pink rash vests to be given to all nippers 
at no cost. This was of a great benefit as safety for our nippers is 
a number one priority and it removed the financial burden from the 
parents. It was also great to see every nipper U6 to U14, boy and girl 
all in the same bright pink rash vest.

  

BBM Junior Development Camp 2013
Once again the BBM Junior development camp was run over the 
Australia day long weekend. As in previous years we have stepped it 
up another level for our visitors. Last year 5 of the girls achieved their 
SRC (surf rescue certificate), this year 2 of them were old enough to 
update their credential to the Bronze Medallion award. Not only did 
they successfully complete this award but dragged along 3 others 
including in that 3 their own parents. Due to the conditions and the 
window of opportunity we had to run the course and practice this 
was no easy task. The competency exam was held in very difficult 
conditions and the group were in no way given an easy path, it was 
a long swim and the rescues demonstrations were challenging to say 
the least. All proved successful and well and truly competent, a well 
deserved reward for them and a great result for the program.

nipper reports

NIPPER’S REPORT 
by Matt Molinia

Dee Why Nippers representatives at Flag raising ceremony
for our Centenary Year

SRC Candidates on the beach after their final exam
and in their well earned patrol uniforms

New Pink rash vests for all nippers on Dee Why beach
sponsored by Dee Why Grand
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Aside from this achievement there were all the up and coming juniors 
that participated in the camp, some 50 odd from Dee Why and 20+ 
from Orange ranging from the ages of 5 to 13. With the assistance 
of our many enthused helpers and experts in their field, the program 
was a great success. Our cadets also joined in to help and run 
activities and take on some responsibility. The nippers from Dee 
Why and Orange all responded well to their youthful approach and 
invaluable knowledge. All the nippers learnt skills on the beach and 
in the water. Our visitors from Orange joined in on the Sunday nipper 
events and due to atrocious conditions on the final day of the camp 
we were bound to the beach. This did not dampen the enthusiasm 
of the team leaders or the participants who ran through first aid and 
Resuscitation scenarios along with and introduction to the IRB and 
some dry land skills.  

 

Part 2 of the BBM JDC continued in early March this year a little 
outside of Orange at Errowanbang. A group of keen Dee Why 
nippers and their parents set off on Friday evening for a long trip not 
knowing what to expect and a little apprehensive as they were told 
to bring everything. Finally arriving at our destination near midnight 
all we could see was a small spot of light from an open door and 
we heard the hum of a generator. Our destination was the Largest 
Woolshed on the Southern Hemisphere but it was primitive and 
totally raw. There was no power (hence the nippers being told not to 
bring screens), the toilets were porta loos supplied for this occasion 
and there was the definite scent of lanolin. 

The group set about at setting up their bedding, there was no 
shortage of space, and settling down for the evening. The next 
day was filled with activities from gold panning and yabbie races 
(unfortunately the yabbies were pets and not on the menu) to sheep 
shearing demonstrations and sailing at Carcoar Dam. The evening 
was topped of with a gourmet dinner prepared by the Orange nipper 
parents and a massive bon fire. 

The next day we headed to Orange Aquatic centre for nipper activities 
along with some Life Saving races in the pool with Dee Why Vs 
Orange and a display of springboard and diving by the Dee Why and 
Orange nippers and parents. It was most definitely a worth while and 
humbling experience for all showing us that even in this day and age 
Power, running water and technology are still non existent to some.

  

  

nipper reports

Bronze group from Orange and Dee Why with Trainers

Australia Day Events at Dee Why Beach
with Orange Bush Nippers and Dee Why Nippers
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I would like very much to thank our sponsors for the season, Dee Why Grand who came aboard and made the pink rashies possible, Big Brother 
Movement for their continued Support with the Junior Development Camp, Raine and Horne Collaroy with their continued support and our new 
sponsor Riaan Foot from Wavescape Orthonontics who supports the BBQ and is intent in doing all he can to support the Dee Why Nippers.

Age Managers 2012 – 2013
Under 6s	 Ron Tyson		  Assistant age managers: Justine Head

Under 7s	 Scott Davidson		  Assistant age managers: Darren Armitage, Gerard Phelan, Rob Swadling

Under 8s	 Herve Vichemont	 Assistant age managers: Jennifer Lang, Amite Skinner

Under 9s	 Lena Roperti		  Assistant age managers: Shane Bowker, Jude Collins

Under 10s	 Dannealle Hannam	 Assistant age managers: Rob Spry, Jeremy Ferguson, Janine Portelli,  Adam Hockley

Under 11s	 Robert Condor		  Assistant age managers: Rob Stephens, Marg Roberts, Taylah Campbell

Under 12s	 Warren Hannam		 Assistant age managers: Scott Alden

Under 13s	 Matthew Molinia		  Assistant age managers: Vern Mitchell

Under 14s	 Ross Hockley		  Assistant age managers: Nick Webster, Ray Clark

Age Managers Encouragement Awards 2012 - 2013
Under 6s	 Boys	 Liam Swain, Matthew Biesty, Jarrah Olsen
	 Girls	 Georgina Markram, Lia Cooper, Samantha Cormack
Under 7s	 Boys	 Jasper Swadling, Keaton Ronge-Smith, Zeb Norris
	 Girls	 Olivia Maietta, Creel Jansen
Under 8s	 Boys	 Christian Mannarino
	 Girls	 Tara Gategood
Under 9s	 Boys	 Ben Eadie
	 Girls	 Maya Portillo-Sorenson
Under 10s	 Boys	 Ethan Griffin
	 Girls	 Emily Farrell

nipper reports

Dee Why Nippers at the BBM JDC in Orange
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Competition and Awards 2012 – 2013
With the branch championships being hosted by Dee Why this season our competitors were keen to be involved and excel. An average of 40 
competitors attended each carnival with a record 88 competitors lining up at the Branch Championships on their home turf. Our Coaches led by 
Ben Davies put in a massive amount of effort in getting the competitors ready. Water competitors, trained by Warren Hannam stepped up to the 
challenge and all improved dramatically on the previous season. Izzy Jacobs in the U9s in her first season in the water was a force to be reckoned 
with achieving results almost every time she hit the water. The U13 girls Ashleigh, Courtney, Emily, Emma put in a great effort to get results in swim 
and board team events. Our beach Competitors led by Jude Collins had a strong season also. Our U8s sprint team from last year stepped up again 
on the track taking out U9 boys beach sprint relay title with Mitchell and Dillon taking out individual titles in sprint and Flags. Justin Ly once again 
proved consistent taking a third at the Branch Championships. 

  

Overall all competitors represented their club well and put in a strong effort. We hope to see more of this next season. 

A group of 26 competitors ventured to the state championships this year at Umina. On arrival on the Friday at a beach that usually looks like 
a lake we found dangerous conditions in the water and no beach available  topped with torrential rain. Events were cancelled for the day but 
spirits remained high. Over the next 2 days our competitors did their best stretched between Umina, Ocean Beach and Terrigal. Even with these 
obstacles put in front of them and a lot of waiting and events being cancelled they never lost focus. Mitchell Bernes and Dillon Hayford were 
finalists in the U9s boys individual sprint, Izzy Jacobs made the final in the U9s Girls individual board and Charlie brown managed a final in the 
U11 Girls individual Surf Swim. 

As previously mentioned the branch titles were held at Dee Why beach which put a huge load on our resources. Between the senior, Masters and 
Junior titles three full days required a lot of work and effort. It was great to see a large group of nipper parents, including the usual faces and a lot 
of new faces, pitch in and help as required and get involved in the spirit of the day. Without all this assistance the championship days would not 
have been the success that they were. 

Junior Development Awards
This award was brought in two years ago to acknowledge those nippers who have gone to the extra effort to advance their own ability and 
confidence. The candidates that receive this award have really come a long way throughout the season.

nipper reports

Competitors at the state titles U9 Sprint state titles, Mitchelll Bernes and Dillon 
Hayford ready and set in the Final

Dillon Hayford, Izzy Jacobs, Taylah Portelli and Ben Ferguson
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Club Championship results for 2012 – 2013
Under 8s		  1st 	 2nd 	 3rd 
Age Champion	 Girls	 Victoria Ly	 Hayley Bennett	
	 Boys	 Edvards Emolins	 Samual Ferguson	
Flags Champion	 Girls	 Victoria Ly	 Susami Partridge	 Leah Kannaway
	 Boys	 Samual Ferguson	 Edvards Emolins	 Leon Pearson
Sprint Champion	 Girls	 Victoria Ly		  Susami Partridge
		  Hayley Bennett		
	 Boys	 Samual Ferguson	 Edvards Emolins	 Leon Pearson
Wade Champion	 Girls	 Victoria Ly		  Susami Partridge
		  Hayley Bennett		
	 Boys	 Edvards Emolins	 Leon Pearson	 Samual Ferguson

Under 9s		  1st 	 2nd 	 3rd 
Age Champion	 Girls	 Angel Moujalli	 Isabella Jacobs	
	 Boys	 Mitchell Bernes	 Kyan Bowker	
Flags Champion	 Girls	 Angel Moujalli	 Maya Portillo-Soreneen	
			   Isabella Simoni	
	 Boys	 Mitchell Bernes	 Joel Cushway	 Hayden Link
Sprint Champion	 Girls	 Lilyrose Davidson	 Isabella Jacobs	 Angel Moujalli
	 Boys	 Mitchell Bernes	 Joel Cushway	
Swim Champion	 Girls	 Angel Moujalli	 Isabella Jacobs	 Lilyrose Davidson
	 Boys	 Mitchell Bernes	 Kyan Bowker	
			   Rhyse Sharma	
Board Champion	 Girls	 Isabella Jacobs	 Lilyrose Davidson	 Angel Moujalli
	 Boys	 Kyan Bowker	 Mitchell Bernes	 Rhyse Sharma

Under 10s		  1st 	 2nd 	 3rd 
Age Champion	 Girls	 Emily Farrall	 Taylah Portelli	
	 Boys	 Benjamin Ferguson	 Bobo Martin	
Flags Champion	 Girls	 Emily Farrell	 Milo Parisi	 Lily Alexander
	 Boys	 Benjamin Ferguson	 Nash Hannam	 Bobo Martin
Sprint Champion	 Girls	 Milo Parisi	 Emily Farrall	
			   Lily Alexander	
	 Boys	 Bobo Martin	 Nash Hannam	 Liam Read
Swim Champion	 Girls	 Taylah Portelli	 Emily Farrall	 Paige Alden
	 Boys	 Benjamin Ferguson	 Bobo Martin	 Tyler Noble
Board Champion	 Girls	 Taylah Portelli	 Emily Farrall	 Lily Alexander
	 Boys	 Benjamin Ferguson	 Bobo Martin	 Jack Spry

Under 11s		  1st 	 2nd 	 3rd 
Age Champion	 Girls	 Wren Lockhart	 Pia Jacobs	
	 Boys	 Charles Mowbray	 Harrison Crowley	
Flags Champion	 Girls	 Wren Lockhart	 Catherine Ly	 Pia Jacobs
	 Boys	 Ethan Ishac		  Charly Simoni
		  Alex Beatty		
Sprint Champion	 Girls	 Wren Lockhart	 Pia Jacobs	 Catherine Ly
	 Boys	 Charles Mowbray	 Alex Beaty	 Charly Simoni
Swim Champion	 Girls	 Charlie Brown	 Wren Lockhart	 Pia Jacobs
	 Boys	 Charles Mowbray		  Nicholas Marshall
		  Harrison Crowley		  Jeremy Gategood
Board Champion	 Girls	 Pia Jacobs	 Catherine Ly	 Wren Lockhart
	 Boys	 Charles Mowbray	 Nicholas Marshall	
			   Harrison Crowley	

nipper reports
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Under 12s		  1st 	 2nd 	 3rd 
Age Champion	 Girls	 Tara Schmidt	 Madison Carr	
	 Boys	 James Berriman	 Hugo Pearson	
Flags Champion	 Girls	 Madison Carr		  Megumi Partridge
		  Tara Schmidt		
	 Boys	 Hugo Pearson	 Blake Mc Taggart	 James Berriman
Sprint Champion	 Girls	 Tara Schmidt	 Madison Carr	
			   Megumi Partridge	
	 Boys	 Hugo Pearson	 Blake Mc Taggart	
Swim Champion	 Girls	 Tara Schmidt	 Megumi Partridge	 Madison Carr
	 Boys	 Blake Mc Taggart	 James Berriman	 Harley Hannam
Board Champion	 Girls	 Madison Carr	 Tara Schmidt	 Megumi Partridge
	 Boys	 James Berriman	 Harley Hannam	 Hugo Pearson

Under 13s		  1st 	 2nd 	 3rd 
Age Champion	 Girls	 Courtney Campbell	 Ashleigh Portelli	
			   Emily Hockley	
			   Emma Katen	
	 Boys	 Connor Tyson	 Justin Ly	
Flags Champion	 Girls	 Courtney Campbell	 Selina Nobel	 Emma Katen
				    Sienna Pate
	 Boys	 Justin Ly	 Connor Tyson	 Ilian Sakhrani
Sprint Champion	 Girls	 Courtney Campbell	 Sienna Pate	 Bronte Alexander
	 Boys	 Justin Ly	 Connor Tyson	 Ilian Sakhrani
				    Anthony Molinia
Swim Champion	 Girls	 Courtney Campbell	 Ashleigh Portelli	 Emily Hockley
	 Boys	 Connor Tyson	 Anthony Molinia	 Justin Ly
Board Champion	 Girls	 Courtney Campbell	 Emily Hockley	 Emma Katen
				    Ashleigh Portelli
	 Boys	 Connor Tyson	 Justin Ly	 Anthony Molinia

Under 14s		  1st 	 2nd 	 3rd 
Age Champion	 Girls	 Tayloy Ly	 Zara McTaggart	
	 Boys	 Noah Pearson	 Joshua Haithwaite	
Flags Champion	 Girls	 Taylor Ly	 Ella Clarke	 Courtney Heaven
				    Zara Mc Taggart
	 Boys	 Noah Pearson	 Joshuah Haithwaite	 Ben Beatty
Sprint Champion	 Girls	 Taylor Ly	 Ella Clarke	 Courtney Heaven
				    Zara Mc Taggart
	 Boys	 Joshuah Haithwaite	 Noah Pearson	 Ben Beatty
Swim Champion	 Girls	 Zara Mc Taggart	 Courtney Heaven	 Taylor Ly
	 Boys	 Noah Pearson	 Liam Webster	 Joshuah Haithwaite
Board Champion	 Girls	 Zara Mc Taggart	 Taylor Ly	 Courtney Heaven
	 Boys	 Noah Pearson	 Liam Webster	 Sam Van Vliet

Iron-Person results for 2012 – 2013 
	 1st 	 2nd 	 3rd 
Junior Iron-Person				  
Girls	 Zara Mc Taggart	 Taylor Ly	 Courtney Heaven
Boys	 Noah Pearson	 Liam Webster	 Sam Van Nliet

Intermediate Iron-Person			 
Girls	 Courtney Campbell	 Ashleigh Portelli	 Emily Hockley
Boys	 James Berriman	 Charles Mowbray	 Connor Tyson

Junior Iron-Person			 
Girls	 Taylsh Portelli	 Isabella Jacobs	
Boys	 Ben Ferguson	 Bobo Martin	 Lachlan Brown
			 

nipper reports

Iron Person Awardees
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Overall Junior Club Champion for 2012 – 2013 
Mitchell Bernes

Nipper Parent of the Year for 2011 – 2012 
Jan Hockley

Junior Carnival Competitors for Season 2012/2013
U14s: Taylor Ly, Natasha Beatham, Ella-Jane Sharpe, Noah Pearson, Sam Van Vliet, Zara McTaggart, Nick Webster

U13s: Emma Katen, Ashleigh Portelli, Courtney Campbell, Emily Hockley, Anthony Molinia, Ilian Sakhrani, Justin Ly, Sienna Pate, Connor Tyson

U12s: Meg Partridge, Harley Hannam, Hugo Pearson, James Berriman, Tara Schmidt, Blake Mctaggart, Ruben Sharma, Tchai Deamorim, Zara 
Harding, Nicholas Tobler

U11s: Pia Jacobs, Catherine Ly, Ethan Ishac, Charles Mowbray, Nic Marshall, Jake Stephens, Charli Brown, Louis Mitchell, Harrison Crowley, 
Jeremy Gategood, Joshua Condor, Ashish Sharda, Annikka Burge, Joshua Dong, Ruby Van Vliet

U10s:Taylah Portelli, Bobo Martin, Ben Ferguson, Lani Freeman, Nash Hannam, Emily Farrall, Pippa Whitehead, Liam Read, Ben Eadie, Lachlan 
Brown

U9s: Jake Beesley, Mitchell Bernes, Kyan Bowker, Jackson Brown, Thomas Burge, Joel Cushway, Ethan Griffin, Dillon Hayford, Michael Jergi, 
Angis Katen, Hayden Link, Rhyse Sharme, Nicolas Slinkard, Jay Tinsley, Lachlan Trewin, Massimo Vezzola, Jacqueline Booth, Lilyrose Davidson, 
Isabella Jacobs, Angel Moujalli, Maya Portillo-Sorensen, Sonakshi Sharda

U8s: Lio Vichemont, Charlie Shannon, Sam Ferguson, Leon Pearson, Liam West, Max Cooper, Hayley Bennet, Luna O’Donoghue, Victoria Ly, 
Finley York, Henry-Lee Parisi, River Marney, Hunter Schmidt, Petra Jandra, Angus Dominell, Tristan Smith. Edvards Emolins, Suzami Partridge, 
Leah Kennaway

Junior Carnival Results for Season 2012/2013
Category	 Event	 Result	 Competitor 

Manly Beach JAC November 2012
U8 Boys	 Wade Relay	 4th 	
U8 Boys	 Beach Relay	 3rd 	
U9 Boys	 Beach Sprint	 1st 	 Mitchell Bernes
U9 Girls	 Surf Swim	 5th 	 Isabella Jacobs
U11 Boys	 Board	 5th 	 Charles Mowbray
U11 Girls	 Surf Teams	 4th	
U12 Boys	 Flags	 4th	 Hugo Pearson
U13 Boys	 Flags	 6th	 Justin Ly

Freshwater Beach Bennett November 2012
U9 Girls	 Board	 5th	 Isabells Jacobs

Queenscliff Beach JAC December 2012
U8 Boys	 Beach Sprint	 6th 	 Edvards Emolins
U9 Boys	 Beach Sprint	 1st	 Mitchell Bernes
U9 Boys	 Beach Sprint	 3rd 	 Dillon Hayford
U9 Boys	 Beach Relay	 1st	
U9 Boys	 Flags	 2nd 	 Dillon Hayfors
U9 Girls	 Surf Swim	 3rd	 Isabella Jacobs
U9 Girls	 Board	 4th	 Isabella Jacobs
U13 Boys	 Flags	 3rd	 Justin Ly

Narrabeen Beach  JAC December 2013
U9 Boys	 Beach Sprint	 1st	 Mitchell Bernes
U9 Boys	 Beach Relay	 2nd	
U9 Girls	 Surf Swim	 5th	 Isabella Jacobs
U10 Boys	 Surf Swim	 5th	 Ben Ferguson
U13 Boys	 Flags	 1st	 Justin Ly
U13 Girls	 Board Relay	 5th	 Courtney Campbell, Emily Hockley, Ashleigh Portelli
U14 Girls	 Beach Sprint	 3rd	 Taylor Ly
All Age	 Board Relay	 4th	

Jan Hockley Mitchell Bernes, Club Champion (Front Right)
with Izzy, Angel, Kyan and U9 age managers
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SNB Branch Championships February 2013
U8s Boys	 Wade Relay	 2nd 	
U8s Boys	 Beach Sprint	 3rd	 Edvards Emolins
U9 Boys	 Board	 5th	 Kyan Bowker
U9 Boys	 Beach Sprint	 1st	 Mitchell Bernes
U9 Boys	 Beach Sprint	 3rd 	 Dillon Hayford
U9 Boys	 Beach Relay	 1st	 Mitchell Bernes, Joel Cushway, Dillon Hayford, Hayden Link
U9 Boys	 Flags	 3rd	 Dillon Hayford
U9 Girls	 Board	 2nd	 Isabella Jacobs
U10 Boys	 Surf Swim	 5th	 Ben Ferguson
U11 Boys	 Swim Teams	 5th	
U11 Girls	 Surf Swim	 5th	 Charlie Brown
U11 Girls	 Swim Teams	 5th	
U11 Girls	 Board Rescue	 2nd	 Charlie Brown, Pia Jacobs
U13 Boys	 Flags	 3rd	 Justin Ly
U13 Girls	 Swim Teams	 6th	 Ashleigh Portelli, Courtney Campbell, Emily Hockley, Emma Katen
U13 Girls	 Board Relay	 6th	 Ashleigh Portelli, Cortney Campbell, Emily Hockley
U13 Girls	 Board Riding	 2nd	 Courtney Campbell
U13 Girls	 Board Riding	 3rd	 Emily Hockley
U13 Girls	 Board Riding	 4th	 Ashleigh Portelli
All Age	 Board Relay	 6th	

State Carnival Competitors for Season 2012/2013
Taylor Ly, Emma Katen, Ashleigh Portelli, Courtney Campbell, Emily Hockley, Anthony Molinia, Justin Ly, Harley Hannam, Pia Jacobs, Catherine 
Ly, Charles Mowbray, Nic Marshall, Charli Brown, Louis Mitchell, Taylah Portelli, Nash Hannam, Kyan Bowker, Isabella Jacobs, Angus Katen, 
Mitchell Bernes, Dillon Hayford, Joel Cushway, Hayden Link, Massimo Vezzola, Rhyse Sharma, Victoria Ly

State Titles March 2013
Category	 Event	 Result	 Competitor
U9 Boys	 Beach Sprint	 5th	 Dillon Hayford
U9 Boys	 Beach Sprint	 8th	 Mitchell Bernes
U9 Girls	 Board	 Finalist	 Isabella Jacobs
U11 Girls	 Surf Swim	 Finalist	 Surf Swim

 U9 Beach sprint relay team, 
Gold at Branch Championships U9 Boys waiting for the next event at state titles
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Vale – Ron Allsop 
2 December 1930 – 25 April 2013
Ron joined Dee Why Surf Club in 
1945 where he attained his bronze 
medallion in 1948 and served the 
club until the early 60’s. He spent 
countless hours on the beach 
patrolling, Ron and other members 
of the surf club made the first rescue 
boards made out of butter boxes, 
plywood and a heavy coating 
of shellac in the late 40’s. Ron 
used to tow the heavy board from 
Narraweena behind his pushbike up 
and down May road every weekend 
always heading to the Surf Club.
Ron will be sadly missed by his 
family and friends.

Vale – Hayden Lacey 
Hayden Lacey joined the Dee Why Surf Life 
Saving Club as a Dee Why resident and 
obtained his Bronze Medallion in the 1950-
51 Season.
In subsequent Years, business and family 
commitments saw him leave the district 
and the club. He renewed his membership 
in 1991-92 due to his association with the 
“Ice Picks” and retained his interest until his 
death in April last year.

Vale – Steven James Jarvie  
11th March 1951—17th February 2013
A great loss to his family and many friends 
was the sudden death of Steve Jarvie as 
a result of a tragic cycling accident. Steve 
passed away on the 17th February 2013 
at RNSH surrounded by those who dearly 
loved him. Steve joined the Surf Club in the 
1980’s as a Nipper parent and soon gained 
his Bronze medallion in Oct 1988. Steve 
became the Nipper coordinator through 
the years 1988-1992 where his familiar catch phrase was “Welcome 
Folks and isn’t it great to be at Dee Why Beach this morning”? Steve 
was a loyal, patrolling, member and a skilled IRB driver, Patrol 
Captain, and all round mentor. Steve achieved his 10 and 20 year 
patrol service awards and was always a very fit athlete and swimmer. 
He became deputy President for the years 1998 and 1999 and was 
an integral part in the refurbishment of the Clubhouse and the Betty 
Barry room as well as implementing constitutional changes and the 
service awards that now stand. Steve took great pride in being a 
Club member and had a special way of keeping everyone calm and 
enthusiastic. His corporate background brought a professionalism to 
his many roles and he had a particular skill at encouraging people to 
strive for whatever it was they wanted and took great pride in others 
achievements as well as his own 3 boys, Oscar, Alex and Edward. 
Steve will be sadly missed and fondly remembered as the man with 
the microphone that welcomed one and all and finished off with, “Bye 
Folks and thanks”.

Vale – Steven Leach  
Steven Leach (Leachy) joined the Club 
in the 1969-1970 season gaining his 
qualifying and then his bronze in 1971. 
Steven went on to row surf boats in the 
under 19 division and won silver medals 
at branch & state championship’s in 1974. 
Steven became club gear steward in 1975 
and held that position until 1988, he was 
awarded Club Man of the year in 1979-
1980 season. One of Steven’s passions 
was to tow the surf boat to carnivals almost 
every Saturday and especially to the State 
and Australian championships over many 
years. Steven was known as leachy, but 

because of his long red hair and beard he was also called Rory 
the Lion. He was very well liked by all who new him and had great 
character, he also had an extreme love of the amber fluid and when 
he wasn’t around the surf club you could always find him at the Time 
& Tide Hotel. Steven died in April this year aged 57 from liver cancer, 
way too young and will be sadly missed by all.

SPONSORS

BBM Ltd
Brookvale Insurance Brokers 
Chill Bar
Deck 23

Dee Why Grand Shopping Centre
Dee Why RSL Club Ltd
DHL Ltd
Mason & Brophy Strata Management 

Raine & Horne Real Estate - Dee Why
Taste Retail P\L
The Supply Hub
Wavescape Orthodontics

Dee Why SLSC wish to thank the generosity of their sponsors...

VALES

Vale – Colin Dibley
Colin Dibley joined the club in 1947-48 
Season and claimed his Bronze Medallion 
in the following season. Although not 
participating in competition or club 
administration, Colin maintained active 
membership until becoming eligible for active 
reserve in 1958-59 (ten years of patrols).
He continued in this category until 
transforming to long service on establishment 
of this level of membership retaining his 
interest in what was happening at the club.
At the time of his death, just after the close 
of the season, Colin was the fourth longest 
Bronze Medallion holder at the club. 
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PATRON
Deane, The Hon Sir William AC, KBE

Life Members
* DENOTES DECEASED

Anderson, Peter * 	 1938

Andrew, Douglas 	 1975

Andrew, Jeffrey 	 1985

Arday, John 		 1984

Bailey, Arthur * 	 1930

Beard, Len * 	 1954

Boyt, George * 	 1942

Burke, Barry * 	 1982

Burke, Richard 	 1965

Chad, Nelson * 	 1970

Chad, Reg  * 	 1964

Crisp, Bill *  	 1921

Dempster, George* 	 1925

Dempster, Jim *  	 1929

Ewing, Jock * 	 1949

Ewing, John 	 1972

Gale, Frank * 	 1944

Gee, William 	 1991

Haggett, Steve 	 2007

Hand, Thomas 	 1976

Higginbotham, E * 	 1925

Hopping, Max * 	 1950

Ingram, Anthony 	 1998

Lang, David 	 2004

Lock, Dick * 	 1932

Loton, Alf * 		 1940

Martin, Raymond 	 1992

Miller, Horrie * 	 1931

Moran, Stephen 	 2000

Moran, Tom *  	 1933

Moroney, Tom * 	 1927

Pitt, Barrie 		 1962

Quinn, Martin 	 2008

Radford, Bill * 	 1960

Ralph, Harry * 	 1928

Rees, Ivor 		  2009

Richardson, Bruce 	 2006

Rose, J * 		  1915

Swadling, Noel * 	 1939

Thew, E * 		  1918

Thomas, Ern *  	 1923

Thoroughgood, John * 	 1989

Long Service
Barnes, Craig

Boer, Pieter

Boer, Pieter (Jnr)

Candrick, Gregory

Candrick, Patrick

Candrick, Paul

Cardiff, Barry

Causon, Graeme

Chave, Bruce

Crawford, Michael

Crawford, Nanette

Crittle, Geoffrey

Dibley, Colin

Dickenson, Thomas

Dixon, Robynann

Etherington, Neil

Fletcher, Brian

Fox, Noel

Gore, Darren

Gracie, Gavin

Hall, Clifton

Hogan, Edward

Horner, Geoffrey

Johnston, Allan

Lakeman, Allen

Listberger, Joerg

Lockhart, Brian

Marshall, Grant

Morgan, Chris

Moriarty, Simon

Moxham, Philip

Newling, William

Newton, Patricia

Newton, Paul

Nial, Terrence

Payne, Daniel

Phelan, Matthew

Pitt, Mark

Plush, David

Raynes-Greenow, Peter

Ritson, John

Scott, Stephen

Sinclair, David

Starr, Robert

Theodore, George

Thorne, Bruce

Waldock, Cindy

Wayne, Rebecca

Wilmot, Graham

Wilson, Thomas

Wyer, Joe

Wyllie, Cam

Wymer, John

Honorary
Armstrong, Dr Michael

Beachley, Layne

Deane, Lady Helen

Devitt, John

Farris, Brooke

Hickie, Peter

Ritchie, Peter

Scott, Gavin

Watts, Gary

Weldon, Kevin

Wilson, Matt

Active 
(18 Years and Over)
Alden, Scott

Asquith, John

Ayres, Iain

Beaumont, Mitch

Benson, John

Berry, Kate

Blieden, Ryan

Booth, Jayde

Bradbury, Hallie

Bryant, Grace

Buckley, Zea

Byatt, Andrew

Callaghan, Grant

Casey, Willis

Caves, John

Cheney, Robert

Clarke, Ray

Collins, Judy

Collyer, Laini

Crawford, Andrew

Cresswell, Vivienne

Cunneen, Benjamin

Darnley, Ryan

Davies, Ben

Dawes, William

Dean, Benjamin

Ellis, Carla

Etherington, Adrienne

Firminger, Peter

Foot, Riaan

French, Liam

Gerasimov, Dennis

Gibb, Rebecca

Graham, Kelly

Guernier, Caroline

Hardy, Paul

Hatfield, Joshua

Hodges, Mark

Hutton, Rae-Maree

Jacobs, Roger

Jordan, Zaven

Kaye, Kirrilea

King, Jason

Kirillov, Anthony

Kjoller, Colin

Lakeman, Alexander

Lew, Christopher

Listberger, Jamie

Lockhart, Arthur

Long, Hugh

Long, Luke

Lonsdale, Ryan

Lowe, Adrienne

MacBride, Jason

McAllister, Debbie

Moon, Aaron

Morris, Kerry

Navin, Simon

Nicotra, Stephen

O`Farrell, John

Oost, April

Packer, Steve

Page, Emma

Parker, Tim

Partos, Michael

Pollicina, Aleisha

Quinn, Madison

Quinn, Nicola

Raden Winoto, Yannick

Rashleigh, Stephen

Rees, Sarah

Reilly, Michelle

Richards, Steve

Roberts, Karl

Roel, Jonathan

Santoni, Philippe

Sawyer, Gregory

Selby, Harrison

Sharkey, Justin

Sharkey, Peter

Sharpe, Anthony

Sheedy, Timothy

Simon, Peter

Skinner, Allan

Sky, Susan

Smith, Joshua

Smith, Luke

Spink, David

Stafford, Joel

Stafford, Nicole

Swadling, Robert

Temple, Jayne

Tenhove, Hendrik

Thomas, Philip

Tucker, Jeffrey

Tucker, Ryan

Tyson, Ron

Wainwright, Timothy

Weisse, Matthew

Whitehead, Graham

Williams, Mark

Williams, Vaughn

Wilson, Chris

Wiseman, Carolyn

Yabsley, Ben

Yabsley, Ryan

York, Adrian

Active 
(15-18 Years)
Booth, James

Booth, Nathan

Bryant, Jack-Henry

Cornelius-Mau`u, Patrick

Cunneen, Emma

Davies, Taylah

Etherington, Courtney

Haggett, Kane

Halligan, Bronte

Jeffcoat, Emma

Kadziela, Sebastian

Lang, Jennifer

Layton, Andy

Lew, Jordan

Martin, Daniel

Polley, Steven

Sjoestroem, Malin

Skinner, Keenan

Soden, Charlie

Talty, Kara

Tucker, Reid

Wiseman, Paige

Wyllie, Connor

Cadet Member 
(13 - 15 Years) 
Allsop, Amy

Armenio, Cassandra

Brown, Tim

Bulic, Melanie

Campbell, Tayla

Campbell, Taylor

Chiha, Stephanie

Collins, Amber

Connah, Penny

Diaz, Jordan

Fender, Jack

Haggett, Chelsea

Hill, Matthew

Hockley, Adam

Jacobs, Cara

Kjoller, Alice

Marshall, Harrison

O`Flaherty, Jarrod

Polley, Michael

Pomeranetz, Jayden

Rouse, Jaslyn

Scott, Tilly

Skinner, Amite

Wyllie, Madison

Reserve Active
Armitage, Darren

Beauchamp, Gary

Booth, Nicholas

Bowker, Shane

Chivers, Julie

Chojnacki, Mark

Clarke, Rowena

Collins, John

Condor, Robert

Everett, Jason

Gammidge, Ross

Gammie, Denise

Gilmour, David

Haggett, Robyn

Hall, Clifford

Hannam, Warren

Hatfield, Peter

Henshaw, Anne

Lachmann, Jacqueline

Lachmann, Torsten

Listberger, Jenny

Markram, Ian

McKell, David

Millar, Neville

Mitchell, Vern

Molinia, Matthew

Nicol, Ian

Punch, Gregory

Quinn, Hayden

Roberts, Margaret

Skinner, Samantha

Stephens, Rob

Thomson, Jon

Troop, Marianne
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Twaalfhoven, Patricia

Van Amstel, Roland

Vichemont, Herve

Weisse, Wayne

Winkler, Robert

Wyer, Alex

Wyllie, Catherine

Yabsley, Gary

Associate
Boer, Phillip

Burke, Nola

Cardiff, Vee

Cheney, Darrell

Cheney, Susan

Corrales-N, Nancy

Dalglish, Donald

Doupe, Greg

Gambrill, Louis

Gason, Mary

Jones, Geoffrey

MacLaurin, Robby

McVay, Graham

Meppem, Mary

Morgan, Jennifer

Perkins, Kevin

Pitt, Judith

Prior, James

Ross, Victor

Sharkey, Kathryn

Smith, Alan

Stromland, Fay

Walker, Ronald

Weisse, Jillian

Yabsley, Anne

Nipper Parents
Aizawa, Noriko

Alexander, Bernadette

Allsop, Paul

Armenio, Elizabeth

Ashman, Chris

Attanasio, Emanuele

Bartlett, Steve

Baylis, John

Baylis, Mark

Beatty, Dean

Beatty, Marilyn

Beckton, Colin

Bedford, Belinda

Beesley, Marty

Bennett, Anthony

Bennett, Michael

Bernes, Melani

Berriman, David

Biesty, Stephen

Blair, Ian

Blair, Luke

Bolstad, David

Booth, Anthony

Bosle, Emmanuelle

Bradner, Richard

Brady, Sara

Bricknell, Sam

Brown, Angelique

Brown, Christopher

Bulic, Elizabeth

Burge, Conrad

Bushnell, John

Campbell, Danielle

Campbell, David

Campbell, Peter

Campbell, Ryan

Carr, Lee

Carrier, Sonya

Carroll, Emma

Cikes, Beni-Dee

Cooper, Paul

Cormack, Debbie

Crookwell, David

Crowley, Paul

Curran, Paul

Cushway, Glenn

Davidson, Scott

Dibble, Lesley

Dominello, Matthew

Driscoll, Gwendolyn

Driscoll, Peter

Duggan, Jodie

Dunkley, David

Eadie, Jason

Elliott, Martha

Emolins, Janis

Evans, Daniel

Farrall, Mark

Femia, Mick

Ferguson, Jeremy

Ferrari, Claudine

Field, Michael

Ford, Krystal

France-Hewitt, Bridget

Freeman, Stefan

Frew, Kerry

Gardner, Chris

Gategood, Claire

Gategood, Richard

Godfrey, Matthew

Graham, Amanda

Graves, Jennifer

Griffin, James

Grima, Wayne

Haithwaite, Jason

Haithwaite, Melissa

Hannam, Dannealle

Harding, Mark

Hardy, Leslie

Hardy, Marianne

Hasloch, James

Hayford, Sue

Head, Justine

Heath, Darren

Heaven, Isabel

Higgins, Richard

Hingerty, Rebecca

Hockley, Janet

Hockley, Ross

Horton, Gerry

Hoy, Christopher

Hudson, Justine

Hughes, Anthony

Humel, Monica

Iglesias, Dorothy

Ishac, Anthony

Jacobs, Wayne

Janda, Attila

Janssen, Marie

Jeregui, Vladimir

Joergensen, Ingo

Johnston, Putli

Jones, Brenton

Kadziela, Piotr

Keen, Mathew

Kennaway, Bruce

King, Wanita

Kotlyar, Vlad

Kusnierz, Jerzy

Laughton, Justin

Lewis, Owen

Lillejord, Becky

Lim, David

Link, Craig

Linsley, Ross

Lockhart, John

Lockhart, Karen

Ly, Phillip

MacKenzie, Mark

Maher, Jason

Mannarino, Settimio

Mansfield, Gavin

Marcroft, Roberta

Marshall, Bec

Martin, Charlotte

McDougall, Jennifer

McKinnon, Darren

McLaren, Katie

McTaggart, Vincent

Meehan, Cassie

Miles, Adam

Milner, Bindy

Milne-Vescio, Vanessa

Mitchell, Ian

Moody, Mark

Morley, Neil

Mowbray, Kim

Mowbray, Todd

Nadri, Danny

Nadri, Miya

Nield, Wendy

Noble, David

Norris, Daniel

O`Donoghue, Michael

Parisi, Naomi

Parisi, Stephen

Parker, Frances

Paroz, Steven

Partridge, Timothy

Pate, Susan

Patterson-Roberts, Warren

Peake, Alanna

Peake, Anthony

Pearson, Adrian

Periera, Ricardo

Phelan, Gerard

Portelli, Janine

Pringle, Buzz

Read, Megan

Rere, Kimberley

Richardson, Shawn

Robinson/Van Uliet, Kathryn

Roperti, Catherine

Roperti, Lena

Rostamians, Sanja

Sage, Gareth

Sauge, Michael

Schmidt, Mark

Schmidt, Rob

Schmidt, Sandra

Shannon, Matt

Sharda, Neeraj

Sharma, Tracey

Silva, Chris

Silva, Milane

Singer, David

Sizeland, David

Slinkard, Daniel

Smith, Chris

Smith, Michael

Smith, Neill

Snowden-Harris, Karlea

Somerville, Craig

Sorensen, Edna

Spry, Robert

Stephenson, Christine

Swadling, Rob

Swain, Tony

Szamo-Virag, Krisztian

Tartonne, Melanie

Thomas, Ann

Thomsen, Sarah

Tijs, Cornelis

Tinsley, Ian

Tobler, Heinz

Toohey, James

Treacy, David

Trewin, Lisa

Ueda, Yayoi

Van Der Weegen, Julie

Vezzola, Andrea

Waight, Carole

Warta, Heidi

Watmough, Anthony

West, Andrew

Wheaton, Beth

Wilson, Larry

Wilson, Rosemary

Worsfold, Samantha

Yech, Vladislav

Nippers 
Under 6
Alden, James

Alexander, Abbey

Baines, Pharrell

Baylis, Nya

Baylis, William

Beatty, William

Beckton, Daniel

Bedford, Giselle

Berriman, Zoe

Biesty, Matthew

Blair, Connor

Blair, Hudson

Blieden, Owen

Bolstad, Kate

Bosle, Baptiste

Bricknell, Kiri

Brown, James

Carrier, Mia

Cooper, Lia

Cooper, Rosemary

Cormack, Samantha

Curran, Elisa

Cushway, Ryan

Dale, Matthew

Dunkley, Elle

Emolins, Emils

Euvrard, Olivia

Evans, Banjo

Garbyal, Xavier

Godfrey, Georgina

Harris, Matthew

Hasloch, Polly

Hayford, Aaron

Hewitt, Mila

Higgins, Willow

Hoy, Emily

Hudson, Paris

Ishac, Tristan

Jacobs, Isabel

Janda, Mark

Janssen, Cairo

Karaka, Angelica

King, Logan

Kotlyar, Sara

Kusnierz, Max

Landers, Dean

Laughton, Harry

Laughton, Joshua

Lillejord, Kaylee

Lim, Georgia

Marcroft, James

Markram, Georgina

McKinnon, Abigail

Miles, Oliver

Mitchell, Kian

Molinia, Michael

Muller, Nicholas

Olsen, Jarrah

Peake, Jayden

Pearce, George

Pearson, Lynn

Read, Cooper

Rere, Tia

Ronge-Smith, Keaten

Sheedy, Ted
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Silva, Vianney

Singer, Jack

Slater, Sydney

Slinkard, Arianna

Spry, Cameron

Swain, Liam

Szamo-Virag, Benjamin

Thomsen, Andrew

Treacy, Jack

Tyson, Alexander

Tyson, Daniel

Velikanovs, Nikita

Vescio, Braxton

York, Katia

Under 7
Alexander, Ruby

Armitage, Aiden

Ashman, Alia

Bartlett, Song

Bennett, Brooke

Bulloch, Merryn

Campbell, Sophie

Cikes, Mica

Crookwell, James

Davidson, Alice

Duggan, Abigail

Farrall, Jack

Femia, Dominic

Ferrari, Amelie

Frew, Brooke

Glozik, Anna

Grima, Maya

Gumbleton, Eliza

Harding, Ethan

Hardy, Thomas

Heath, Nicola

Hudson, Cruz

Humel, William

Janssen, Creel

Jephcote, Zac

Jeregui, Peter

Joergensen, Ava

Keen, Yasmina

Lewis, James

MacKenzie, Dylan

Mackenzie, Dylan

Maher, Sam

Maietta, Olivia

Mannarino, Alyssa

McColl-Gardner, Ruby

McLaren, Riley

McVay, Clancy

Moody, Isabelle

Morley, Finn

Moujalli, Zaria

Newman, Jessica

Nganga, Lacquan

Norris, Zebadiah

Patterson-Roberts, Bailey

Peake, Nicole

Phelan, Luke

Pringle, Jasper

Sauge, Kalani

Smith, Lily

Swadling, Jasper

Tartonne, Olivia

Tijs, Kira

Toohey, James

Waight, Samuel

Worsfold, Ella

Yech, Miroslav

Yimthanom, Rachael

Under 8
Bedford, Miranda

Bennett, Hayley

Carrier, Jacques

Cooper, Max

Dibble, Logan

Dominello, Angus

Driscoll, Emma

Emolins, Edvards

Ferguson, Samuel

Gategood, Tara

Janda, Petra

Jones, Mikayla

Kennaway, Leah

Lillejord, Dawson

Lim, Oscar

Ly, Victoria

Mannarino, Christian

Marney, River

Martin, Molly

Melani, Jesse

Norris, Ezekiel

O`Donoghue, Luna

Parisi, Henry-Lee

Partridge, Suzami

Pearson, Leon

Richardson, Caine

Schmidt, Hunter

Shannon, Charlie

Smith, Tristan

Van Der Weegen, Anika

Vichemont, Lio

West, Liam

Whitehead, Oliver

Yeandle, Philippa

York, Finley

Under 9
Aitken, Jazlyn

Attanasio, Jack

Beesley, Jake

Bernes, Mitchell

Booth, Jacqueline

Bowker, Kyan

Bradner, Marielle

Brown, Jackson

Burge, Thomas

Campbell, Marcus

Cushway, Joel

Davidson, Lilyrose

de la Motte, Taylah

Ferrari, Clara

Griffin, Ethan

Hayford, Dillon

Heaven, Atticus

Hughes, Emily

Jacobs, Ella

Jacobs, Isabella

Jeregui, Michael

Katen, Angus

Kusnierz, Oscar

Link, Hayden

Mansfield, Joshua

Medlicott, Mia

Melani, Damiano

Moujalli, Angel

Nadri, Guy

Portillo-Sorensen, Maya

Sage, Abigail

Sharda, Sonakshi

Sharma, Rhyse

Sheedy, Alexandra

Simoni, Isabella

Slinkard, Nicolas

Tinsley, Jay

Trewin, Lachlan

Ueda, Shohei

Vezzola, Massimo

Under 10
Alden, Paige

Alexander, Lily

Allsop, Riley

Armenio, Christopher

Bosle, Gabriel

Brown, Lachlan

Bulloch, Madison

Driscoll, Liam

Eadie, Ben

Farrall, Emily

Ferguson, Benjamin

Ford, Elissa

Freeman, Lani

Ghorra, Zachariah

Hannam, Nash

Humel, Emily

King, Jordan

Kowald-Linsley, Astrid

Martin, Bobo

McDougall, Jacinta

Noble, Tyler

Parisi, Milo

Pidgeon, Hayden

Portelli, Taylah

Read, Liam

Schmidt, Shelby

Schulenburg, Nicholas

Spry, Jack

Stephenson, Gemma

Velikanovs, Maksims

Whitehead, Pippa

Under 11
Beatty, Alex

Blacklaw, Elise

Blieden, Ethan

Brown, Charli

Burge, Annikka

Campbell, Lachlan

Campbell, Patrick

Condor, Joshua

Crowley, Harrison

Dominello, Max

Dong, Joshua

Ellul, Joel

Gategood, Jeremy

Hughes, Caitlin

Ishac, Ethan

Jacobs, Pia

Kadziela, Izabela

Karaka, Manaia

Lockhart, Wren

Ly, Catherine

Marshall, Nicholas

Melani, Ebony-Ella

Mitchell, Louis

Morgan, Max

Mowbray, Charles

Nadri, Mika

Parisi, McCready

Pate, Ewan

Rostamians, Anasha

Sage, Eleanor

Sharda, Ashish

Simoni, Charly

Sizeland, Alexandra

Sizeland, Liam

Stephens, Jake

Van Vliet, Ruby

Vichemont, Luca

Watmough, Jake

Webster, Lara

Wheaton, Xavier

Under 12
Aizawa, Hinata

Alden, Charlotte

Berriman, James

Bradner, Annalies

Campbell, Summer

Carr, Madison

Darcy, Ryan

De Amorim, Tchai

Deans, Tayla

Goncalves Parker, Isaac

Haithwaite, Brendan

Hannam, Harley

Harding, Zara

King, Lachlan

Kyle-Snaith, Alex

McTaggart, Blake

Medlicott, Tom

Mitchell, Finnigan

Partridge, Megumi

Pearson, Hugo

Schmidt, Tara

Schulenburg, James

Sharma, Reuben

Stephenson, Patrick

Tobler, Nickolas

Ueda, Kenzo

Under 13
Alexander, Bronte

Beatham, Natasha

Bennett, Taj

Bernes, Sophie

Brown, Alisha

Campbell, Courtney

Carr, Charlotte

Hockley, Emily

Kadziela, Ella

Katen, Emma

Kowald-Linsley, Anika

Lockhart, Willamina

Ly, Justin

Mitchell, Grace

Molinia, Anthony

Morgan, Charlie

Nadri, Dori

Noble, Selina

Paroz, Emilie

Pate, Sienna

Portelli, Ashleigh

Sakhrani, Ilian

Schmidt, Alia

Schmidt, Brandon

Tyson, Connor

Wilson, Daniel

Under 14
Beatty, Ben

Bulic, Emily

Clarke, Ella

Collins, Molly

Haithwaite, Joshua

Heaven, Courtney

Ly, Taylor

McTaggart, Zara

Pearson, Noah

Schmidt, Angus

Sharpe, Ella-Jane

Somerville, Stuart

Van Vliet, Sam

Webster, Liam

Plush, Meg

Rashleigh, Daniel

Wyllie, Shaun
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